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CHAIR PONTANILLA: '" (gavel) . .. Good morning, Members, again. It was a short morning for
us. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session. Today is April 26, 2007
and the time is approximately 9:08.

BF-l

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUl
(CC No. 07-29, 07-87, and 07-109)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the Members here this
mornmg. We do have Member Mateo, Member Anderson, Member Baisa, Member Medeiros
and ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning. And Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused this morning are Member Johnson, Member
Molina, as well as our Council Chair, Mr. Hokama. 1'd like to introduce the Administration
that are here this morning. We do have Frederick Pablo, the Budget Director, as well as Traci
Fujita Villarosa, our First Deputy Corporation Counsel. And supporting us this morning,
Members, is Lance Taguchi as well as Gayle Revels, who are our Legislative Analysts, as well
as Yvette Bouthillier, our Committee Secretary. Members, we do have members of the public
signed up for public testimony this morning; but before we go into testimony, I would like to
remind everyone in this Chamber to place their cell phone on the silent mode or tum it off.
Thank you. For those that are giving testimony this morning, you have three minutes to
provide your testimony with one minute to conclude. As you come up to the podium, if you
can, state your name and the organization that you represent. So the first testifier is Mr. Wayne
Nishiki. Wayne, good morning.
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.. . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MR. NISHIKI: Good morning. Wayne Nishiki, representing myself, and not Honolua Coalition. I
watched you last night and that's the reason why I was incited to come and testifY tpis morning.
It has to do with Honolua Coalition and us trying to get seed money for a purchase, whatever,
of Lipoa Point; and I heard a couple of Members that were, was having some problem. I want
to tell you what Honolua Coalition has done thus far. We did sign-wave. We participated with,
Maui Land & Pine to clean up Lipoa Point on Saturday. We meet twice a week, every week.
Just recently, we had kupuna representing the Palakiko family, the Aimoku Pali family, the
... uh ... Richard Hoopii from Honolua, and the Kaina family from Honokohua, also attend
our meeting Tuesday night at 7:30. The kupuna, as you know, don't normally speak until they
feel very comfortable. Thank God, they encouraged our group to go and pursue this area.
They were concerned about what culturally this area holds. Finally, why we're asking for this
money is because we want to try to raise funds from the private sector, State, and Federal. And
I think many of you that have served on the Council know the fact that they normally see what
Maui County is doing before the other governments give money. Also, Honolua Coalition is
not one to come and beg constantly. We will also personally fundraise because I think, for
many of you, to just come and ask for money without fundraising, I think, is a big turnoff. We
want to show our sincerity that we want to do this for this community. Finally, I wanted to let
you know also that the young kids that spoke recently at your meeting, they have now formed a
committee and they are going to the different schools around Maui County, speaking about
Honolua and its importance. So you can see that the young people are really enthusiastic about
doing this. Where to find the money, I think, is the big one. And I think, in this situation, we
are not pitting, as I saw you last night, pitting one project against another. Joe, and you have a
tough job, you know, cutting here to give here. This one is in the open space fund that the
people of Maui County created, 1 percent. I think because of the large Budget this year, that
fund is also increased to somewhere around $6 million. Correct me if I'm wrong.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. NISHIKI: I'll end up right now with one minute. Please put that seed money from that open
space fund if you can. We will show you our sincerity in trying to get money from Federal
government, State government, OHA, and the private sector. So I plead with you ... uh ...
and that's why I'm here today is because I was a bit shaky last night when I saw what was
going on and I hope that you find in your hearts the ability to give us this money. Thank you.
Any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Mr. Medeiros.

Thank you, Wayne.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Mr. Nishiki. Thank you for coming to testify.
Thank you for the information, which is somewhat ... some parts of the information is new
this morning and we appreciate that. I was one that was little bit concerned not knowing what
the open space money that we were thinking of putting in to the open space fund would be
eventually purchasing. But now I understand that because your group--and even though you
represent yourself this morning--County money could be leveraged for other funding sources.
And what gives me even better understanding and a support for this request is that you have
involved the kupuna of that area; and for me, that becomes a very important part of the
equation. And so I tell you this morning that ... uh ... thank you for your commitment to this.
And another part is, like you say, we get a lot ofrequests for money; but when a group takes on
the commitment as willing to fundraise to supplement the County's money, that makes it even
more, for me, to want to support that. So this morning, I can tell you that I will support
whatever I can do to put money in the open space fund in order to support your group and the
... hopefully, the purchase of Lipoa Point and Honolua Bay area. So thank you for your
testimony.
MR. NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Mr. Nishiki.
MR. NISHIKI: Good morning, Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And it's really nice to have you here again. It always feels like old
times when you're here. I am very impressed with what is going on with the Save Honolua
Coalition. For me, it is the epitome of a community in action, galvanizing around an issue that
is really motherhood and apple pie for those of us who are keiki 0 ka aina, and who can
remember what our beaches and our open space used to look like and are committed to trying
to save what is left. And I am very impressed that you have the youth of our community
galvanized. You know, they are the ones who are gonna take up this crusade when those old
warriors like us have given up; and to involve them in something that has so much meaning is
going to change their lives now and forever. And it is because of that and my kamaaina heart
that I want to support the cause because I think it will give our young people belief in the
power of ... that they empowered, that their voice matters, because so many of our people now
feel disenfranchised, like nobody listens to them and nobody really cares. It's all about money,
and it's all power and control, and we need to give them back that hope. You know, I think a
lot of the things we see are symptomatic. Things like drug use and crime and violence and
those kinds of things. Those are symptoms of hopelessness that our youth have, and so they
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turn to drugs to ease the pain becausc of the hopelessness. So to give them a reason to live and
to advocate and to be empowered and to be strong, this is what this means to me. It's more
than saving a beach. It's more than preserving open space. It is a bigger cause and I will also
do whatever I can to make sure that some money is earmarked that you can us~ to leverage
more money. I want to thank you on behalf of all of us for the hard work that you and your
group are doing. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Molina.

Thank you, Member Baisa.

Members, any more questions?

Member

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Nishiki.
MR. NISHIKI: Hi, Michael.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's nice to see you again and I've learned a lot working with you
over the years. I'm gonna be blunt just like you. I learned a lot from you. And I guess I was
one of those Council members that expressed concern about the earmarking of a million
dollars. You've been here, and whenever there's a request for a large amount of money, we
have to do our due diligence to make sure we get all the information. As the folks who are
sitting in the gallery know, we are the gatekeepers for the public dollar so we have to ensure
them that we're spending the money and we get all the details. And I too agree with you,
Honolua is a beautiful place and it's worth saving. I've shown my previous support for open
space land purchases out in Hana, Waihee, and Kihei. So I want to assure you that I will work
towards finding some kind of resolution at, you know, securing this property one way or
another.
One question. I've heard conflicting reports about the coalition meeting with the large
landowner. To your knowledge, has the coalition met to begin discussions? Because at our last
Friday meeting, the landowner did come out and formally say they have begun talks with the
Mayor. Has the coalition or any member that you know of spoken with Mr. Cole from Maui
Land & Pine or any other representative?
MR. NISHIKI: Thank you, Michael. That question is very important. I think that as I was sitting
there before, I realized that the Council (you nine, with the purse strings that you have) set
policy for all of us here in Maui County. The Administration just administrates whatever the
policy that you people set. And I think that it's important that you remember this on behalf of
all of us that are here. The landowner has not met with the coalition. We are hoping--and I
only speak for myself today as I spoke with you last Friday--that it would be a group that the
Council decides and maybe giving some instruction to the Administration that you can form
this group, Michael, with people that are neutral that may have some stake and that would
include the landowner. I am hoping just because our group is very grassroots, as I told you this
morning, Tuesday was the first time that kupuna came and testified and, and, and to talk to us
... not. They didn't testify; they talked to us. We knew that this was a very important venue
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for us to have, to learn about the cultural aspects of Honolua. Now that they have given us
some guidance, we're hoping that you (the Council) can now create a committee because we
feel that you are neutral in this situation and, thereby, move forward into having some
negotiation happen. But please don't leave us out because, as I said, we've got the young
people. We've got kupuna. We've got thousands of people that have signed our petition that
live here in Maui County that are looking, and as Gladys said, with hope that this will become a
reality for this community and for future generations.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. NISHIKI: And I thank you for asking that question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
MR. NISHIKI: And I don't know ifI answered your question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I think you did a good job at answering and I think what
occurred last Friday was a very loud statement as to how the community feels about Honolua
Bay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Thank you, Chair.
MR. NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair, for the ... I just want to follow up. During the
meeting when you testified, I think it was Member Anderson that asked ... uh ... if this group
is formed about the Honolua and Lipoa area open space and purchase, would you consider
being on that committee? And you said you would check with the coalition to see if they would
endorse that. Have you gotten a response from the coalition?
MR. NISHIKI: No. Because again, we met Tuesday--kupuna spoke. Friday, we meet (tomorrow
night) and hopefully that will come to the table; but we're really hoping that you people can
give us some direction as far as where you're headed with this whole thing, and I think that's
what we're awaiting in anticipation. I know you're working very hard and I heard you may be
working Saturday also, but we await what decision you can come up with, with hope.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I know your group has probably considered this but you will be
including the kupuna in this committee or in this group that will be in discussion?
MR. NISHIKI: We need their guidance. This is so important. The kahu that spoke on Friday will also
be speaking to us, I think, next week Tuesday. In fact, he has invited us up to the valley where
he lives so that he can give us some inspiration as to why this is so important.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you for that. And just finally, you know, having
grown up in East Maui (Keanae and Hana), we in East Maui sometimes take open space for
granted because we have so much that we protect it. So I'm glad that there's your work to
preserve what's left in West Maui as far as open space and very special places like Honolua and
Lipoa Point. So thank you for your work and your group's work on this. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair.
MR. NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
I can't let the opportunity pass.
Councilmember Nishiki, I've learned a lot from you too.

. .. (chuckled) ...

MR. NISHIKI: Ex-Councilmember.... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You still hold the honorary title. And it's really good to see you
fighting on that side of the table, instead of this side. Your energy is always welcome. When
you were on the Council, you folks adopted the West Maui Community Plan; and in the
community plan, there is a provision or a policy statement that says, all the lands North of
Honokowai, I believe it is,-MR. NISHIKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --should be preserved in its natural State. And the lands of
Honolua Bay are zoned Conservation or Ag and so ... (sigh) ... is it going to be the focus of
the Honolua Coalition to convince Maui Land & Pine to honor the community plan as it
stands?
MR. NISHIKI: Is that the question?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yes.
MR. NISHIKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In other words, not reconfigure their project; but just to preserve
it in its natural state.
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MR. NISHIKI: Right. All of you know that Gladys has attended the GPAC meeting, so I know that
Gladys is there representing the Council, but we go to every GPAC meeting and have been very
vigilant in regards to language that is being put in. In fact, I think we have a member of GPAC
right here. I know that we have read the community plan and also the existing general plan.
We are concerned about that area and what in the future may be put up there. We have not
looked at the entire area but because the area that we're concerned about right now is the ocean
area, and why we're concerned about the ocean area, despite that we know from kupuna that
have taught us that everything from the mountain to the ocean is very important. And
Mr. Medeiros and Gladys, I see, are nodding because they understand how to keep an area
healthy. You would need the full cooperation of landowners up mauka all the way to
landowners makai. So let me get back to why we're focusing right now on Lipoa Point. It's
because if you look at--and many of you have driven there for public hearings and the sort--at
what development has happened on the Westside, there really is no parks like Kamaole I, II,
and III and Makena Beach. There is no things like Baldwin Park, Hookipa. Very little on the
East side also, you know, that you ... you, I think you need to look at. On the Westside, people
of this community are totally locked out. We have small beach access and parking stalls. But
because of the makai development, that area that we looked at (at Lipoa Point) is the last area
that is now in Conservation at Lipoa Point. It's in Conservation some of that area, Michelle,
and you've helped us a lot; and so why we are looking at the makai lands right now is because
once it's gone, it's gone forever. And I know fighting when we did starting at the jet ski
situation out on the Westside because of the whales; and I know from that area in Kaanapali
going North, we (as local people) have really no parks to visit. There's nothing. There's
parking stalls, very little, but no land that we can go sit down on the bluff at Honolua and watch
the sunset. We in this community are locked out. The only people that have that ability are
those that have developed along that end. Visitors that may visit that area and can walk to it;
but the poor community (the local people) we have nothing. This is one area that we're hoping
you can help us on the Westside, and this in not for only the people on the Westside. This is for
people that may drive from East Maui to go on that side, from Central Maui to go on that side
and go "oh wow, we can go to the park over there after we drive out to the Westside and go
have a picnic, go watch the sunset". This is for you and me (the people of Maui County that
don't have a stake) and this hopefully will be kept in perpetuity, and that's why it's so important
that you help us.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: One more time?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just one quick question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sure, Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. You jogged my memory. You know, in the
foggy hours late last night-MR. NISHIKI: I know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --one of the discussion points that was being talked about was: are you
planning or are you envisioning a park at Lipoa Point, or just preserving it? The important part,
of that was: what kind of funding could be used?
MR. NISHIKI: And I thank you for that question because I think that in speaking to some of your staff
members and people in the Council, which you know are making this decision today, that
vision, I think, has not come full tilt. We know that we want that land first. I think it is, as I
said, Mr. Medeiros and you know, we really need the blessing of kupuna to give us some
guidance as far as what we want to do there. I know that assessment money is there. But
should we decide that it should be wilderness--and all we want to deal with is the erosion
problem--probably planting native species there from guidance from our kupuna, I think if I
were to speculate a little bit. That is where our mind and our heart is, and this is at least the
direction that we'd like to pursue. So that is why I said a preference of open space fund
because I know that if you use--well I don't know, but you can check on this--that if you use
park assessment, it may be a capital improvement and we may need to do the various things
that you do. But I am not willing to, at this point, say that that's what the picture is for us, so
why I say open space fund may be better.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: All right. Thank you. That was a point of discussion, so now we know
the answer.
MR. NlSHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MR. NlSHIKI: I think it's what? I think Lance said "Appendix A" or something last night.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah .... (chuckled) ...
MR. NISHIKl: I can remember. . .. (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
MR. NISHIKl: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MR. NlSHIKI: And thank you again.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Members, any more questions? Seeing none.
Thank you, Wayne, for being here this morning.
MR. NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair would like to recognize the presence of Member Molina as well as
Member Hokama. The next testifier is Don Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members. My name is Don Medeiros. I'm
the Director of the County Department of Transportation. I apologize for not being at the late
night with you last night and able to answer questions. Sorry about that. ... (chuckled) ...
I'll be more than happy to answer them at your pleasure, Chair Pontanilla, if it be now or at
another time. I know how busy you are. I know you have a schedule going ... going on. It's
... I'll serve at your pleasure, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros. We're gonna be calling the various departments after we do
have ... uh . .. after the public hearing is completed--I'm sorry-_Hafter testimony is
completed".
MR. MEDEIROS: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we'll go to the items that are still open with the various departments that
we discussed last night.
MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Mr. Warren McCord. Good morning.
MR. McCORD: Good morning. My name is Warren McCord, and I'm representing the Maui Outdoor
Circle, but I'm also representing a broad base of community people--people that live on
Baldwin Avenue, that live in Makawao, that live in Paia, that travel Baldwin Avenue, or are
concerned for what's happening on Baldwin Avenue with the traffic and the bicycles.
An E-mail from Councilwoman Gladys Baisa on Tuesday (24 April) has raised an important
point that needs to be clarified. She points out that the land acquisition of the Baldwin Avenue
bike path may be several years out, perhaps out to 2010; and funds in this year's Budget would
be sitting unused. I would sincerely hope this is not the case. The County of Maui needs to
purchase the right-of-way as soon as possible for two very important reasons.
The Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar Company has been very supportive of this project and the
County needs to take advantage of this goodwill, and the price of the land will only increase as
time goes by.
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The second is even more important. The Strategic Transportation Improvement Plan has
money allocated for construction in the outyears (2010-2012). But Mr. Freddy Cajigal of the
Maui office of State Transportation Division has told me that projects fall out eve~y year that
do not complete their plan preparation, and that money is then allocated to a project that's
ready for bidding. He has told me he considers the Baldwin Avenue bike path a high priority
for traffic safety, and he feels the County ofMaui would be well advised to be prepared to take
advantage of this fallout money thus to be spent on a project perhaps on another island.
There's been some concern expressed that the Baldwin Avenue bike path is only for the bicycle
companies and visitors to Maui. It is true that from 7:30 to 12:30, a large number of cyclists
will use this path going downhill. That means, however, that all the local folks driving to
Makawao or to Paia--going to work, to school, or shopping--will not have to contend with
those bicycles on the road. Then everyday for half a day, we have a six-mile-off-road path for
local cyclists, families who want to teach their children to ride a bike, neighborhood walkers,
and hikers to use safely. The Maui Outdoor Circle's motto is "clean, green, and beautiful".
There's nothing beautiful about an injured cyclists or a frustrated driver that takes dangerous
chances. I find it curious that the same people that put paving Baldwin Avenue 11 feet wider
into the STIP are now the most vocal against taking the same 11 feet of bike path and moving it
15 feet offthe road.
I would like to conclude by quoting a bicycle alliance webpage, the webpage of the same
individuals that oppose the six-mile-off-road path. "A recent survey of Hawaii residents
showed that a large percentage want to be able to ride for fun, exercise, and transportation, but
they won't do it because they don't feel safe riding on Hawaii's roads. The only way the
average resident will feel safe', the survey respondent said, 'is if we build an independent path
that are separate from the roadways."
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. McCORD: Thank you very much for your consideration. We will stand, at your pleasure, to do
whatever we can to improve this situation on Baldwin Avenue. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. McCord. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. McCord, and thank you
for sharing your thoughts with us on this matter. Do you agree that those--should this bike path
be constructed, those that use it for commercial purposes should contribute towards the
maintenance of the bike path? ... (end of tape, start IB at 9:37 a.m.j. ..
MR. McCORD: I really can't answer that. I am willing--because I can't speak for them-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
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MR. McCORD: --but I would think that anyone that uses it would like to see it maintained to a very
high standard. I can tell you that the community will help. The Maui Outdoor Circle stands
ready to talk to several of the organizations. For example, Maui Youth and Family Services,
the Hui, maybe a private landowner. One of the reasons the trees on Baldwin Avenue have not
done as well as they should have is they don't have water; and those organizations are willing
to let us use water from their meters (across Baldwin Avenue) to maintain it. The Maui
Outdoor Circle stands ready to plant the trees and then do fundraising or perhaps grants
(whatever it takes) to keep this organization of the maintenance problem in order.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your response and the reason I asked that
because chances are the commercial bike tour operators will be the ones using that bike path,
and it's just my opinion that, I feel they should do their part to help assist the County in
maintaining that bike path. Thank you. Thank you, Warren.
MR. McCORD: I think they would. Because obviously, this is part of their business. They want it to
look as good and to be as safe as possible. They incidentally have participated in the design
that we're waiting to bring back to the Council that sits in Honolulu and show you that it is now
a safe design and they participated considerably in that design.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Mr. McCord, and thanks for coming. It's my
understanding that one of the delays here is in acceptance of a plan that is acceptable to
everyone. One of the delays and what needs to be done is a revision of a plan so that it would
be acceptable because there's been concerns raised by various groups that are involved. Are
you aware of that? And can you tell me anything about that?
MR. McCORD: What happened was, a year-and-a-half ago. It was actually last September. That
revised plan was presented to the Administration and they sent it to Honolulu. Because HC&S
has been so generous, they gave us a good deal more land in order to straighten out the bike
path so that there were no sharp right- or left-hand comers. That required some surveying
work; that $40,000 was never made available to bring that plan back.
The
community--including the bike companies, HC&S, a large group of cyclists, and just people
that were interested--spent eleven months in revising that plan. We feel that it is a safe
... uh ... it would be a wonderful addition to our community and we would love to get that
plan back from Honolulu; all we need to do is spend the $40,000 and the two months that are
required to draw it up and bring it back.
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COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. In discussions with the Department and as a result of what
was ... the information that was, you know, obtained, the Council--at this point--has $100,000
in the Budget to proceed with, you know, getting rid of all of the design and plan issues so that
we might be able to think about taking this further in the next Budget, but not actu~lly spending
all the money that's there now. And because there's so many needs and, you know, we're all
sitting here trying to figure out how do we cover everything that needs to be done right away,
that was what precipitated the reduction in the funding. I think that, you know, we're all in.
support and we all know what it is about; but no one wants to fund something that's just gonna
sit there, so that's the bottom line.
MR. McCORD: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Medeiros.

Thank you, Member Baisa.

Member Anderson followed by Member

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you. Mr. McCord, thanks for coming in. You know, you
just said it. That the bike companies would probably want to participate in maintaining the
road since they'll be using it ... or the path. Do you think that, you know, the overall cost of
this and the construction as far as the CIP Program for this path--they have scheduled the
construction to not begin until 2010, and so the total amount that is currently budgeted towards
this project is $9,300,000. As we've seen, the cost of asphalt and whatnot increasing, it could
end up being more than that. So my question to you is ... this is a lot of taxpayer dollars for a
bike path that's going to be used primarily by commercial tour operators. Don't you think that
they should be contributing in dollars in having this path built? And the alternative for me is
having this body ban the use of Baldwin Avenue for commercial tours.
MR. McCORD: Well, I'm sorry. I can't speak for them. But ... uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I'm asking your opinion.
MR. McCORD: No ... no, I would be willing to approach them and 1 believe that, you know, we
can--I don't want to use the word strong-arm ... (chuckled) ... but persuade that, you know,
this is in their best interest.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: It certainly is.
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MR. McCORD: Their advertisement says from "the top of the mountain to the ocean" and Baldwin
Avenue is the link between that. I'll tell you honestly. I have not approached them to do that
because I have no authority to do that. I have not been asked to do that by anybody that, you
know, like the Council for example or the Administration. I would be willing to do that but I
think that I need to have some, you know, I don't have any portfolio if you will. However, I do
honestly believe that we've got to do something because ... my wife is sitting in the audience,
and she almost ran over one of those bikers when the biker fell right in front of her; and I would
feel so sorry for that biker if we had run over her, but I'd feel much sorrier for my wife because
I'd have a basket case on my hands.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. McCORD: And I want to eliminate that for our local people.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Aud so do I. You know, I lived Upcountry for 16 years
and I dealt on a daily basis with the tour companies. But my question is aimed at, you know,
you're representing Outdoor Circle and I appreciate your support of this, not only because it
leaves Baldwin Avenue intact without destroying any of the trees, but it also does provide, as
you said, a walking path for residents along Baldwin Avenue should they want to utilize it; but
$10 million is a lot of money for a walking path. So you know, I don't think you need a
portfolio. As a citizen--as someone who's concerned about this, as someone who has advocated
for this--I think you have, you know, all the cache you need to go to the bike tour companies
and say "come on guys; get on board; help us out here". This is gonna benefit you. Let's see
you come to the table. Aud then that way, you know, it's just like Mr. Nishiki was saying
earlier, this body wants to see participation. The County is not a cash cow and especially when
we have so many pressing needs for our resident community, it's hard to earmark this much
money of taxpayer dollars that will primarily benefit a commercial operation for profit. So I
hope that you do engage them and get them to come to the table and stand where you're
standing and ask us for this money.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeirosry
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Mr. McCord, thank you for your testimony this
morning. I'm looking at your written testimony that you submitted. Can you tell me, to your
best knowledge, what the State--because in Item No.2, you say you had discussions with
Mr. Freddy Cajigal of the State Department of Transportation here on Maui--what participation
will the State play in this project?
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MR. McCORD: The Strategic Transportation Improvement Program is Federal money that is
earmarked for projects such as Baldwin Avenue. It cannot be used for highway construction. It
cannot be used for land purchase. It can only be used for improvements to a roadway for a
bicycle path, a walking path, that kind of thing. So that $5 million will come froll) the Federal
government, not from us, and has already been earmarked in the STIP for this project; and it
just keeps sliding because we don't have the land purchase. As soon as we purchase the land,
that money can start to become available. Mr. Cajigal says that we may not get the whole,
$5 million at one time, but we can get part of it just as soon as we have the land purchased. I
don't know ... uh ... I'm not real sure exactly where Councilwoman Anderson's $10 million
figure comes from because the County has spent $500,000 at this point for this project, and
we've asked for another $500,000 to buy the land. I do see an item in the Budget from the
Administration for some more money, and I'm not just sure whether that's for maintenance or
for what other purpose ... because I was informed by Freddy Cajigal that $5 million is all we
need to build it, so I don't know where that other money is going to be used. But I do know
that the Outdoor Circle will be in the forefront to help provide money to help maintain it
because I think that is one of the keys. The key is not only to fund it, and to build it, but to
maintain it so that it's safe.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And my second question, Mr. McCord, is that, you know,
it referenced the years 2010 to 2012 and before that, it says "outyears". Explain to me what
"outyears" means.
MR. McCORD: 2010, 2012 are the outyears. Actually, the Strategic Transportation Improvement
Plan only funds one year in advance. But then it picks up other projects for the next year and
the next year, and the out years are those projects that they look at that haven't been planned
and prepared yet; and ... uh ... but the strategic plan tries to forecast five to seven years in
advance. Those are the outyears.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. McCord. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for your information. The Federal government that is being
requested from the STIP is $5.6 million. Mr. McCord, I have a question. If we were to restrict
commercial use of Baldwin Avenue and this proposed bike path, would the Maui Outdoor
Circle have a problem with that? And what I'm looking at is local resident safety in regards to
walking and biking.
MR. McCORD: I'm sorry. You mean restrict them from using the bike path?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The commercial users (bike tour companies).
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The road.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: '" (inaudible) ... the road.
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MR. McCORD: I understand what you're saying. I don't quite understand why you would want to do
that. You know, the visitor industry on Maui is one of our biggest industries and part of, at least
my personally feeling, now, I have to speak for myself at this point. I own a business that is
tourist oriented and we try to be gracious, helpful, aloha, whatever you want to say, to anyone
that comes because we know that those people will come back if they have a good experience
here on Maui. And so I would try to say that, in my opinion, I would try to give those people
that are riding the bicycle down Baldwin Avenue the very best experience they can because I
want them to come back. I want them to come back to Maui, spend more money, and come
and visit my garden. I think when you start restricting that kind of activity, you begin to give a
negative impact to what we're trying to do in the way of the Aloha spirit; and so I would object
to--it's personal--to restricting them. I would try to make it safest for them, make it safest, not
only for them but for our residents that are riding on Baldwin Avenue in their cars. But I'm
gonna take comment from Councilwoman Anderson and I'm gonna go to the companies and
say, you know, are you willing to put up and we are a 501(c)(3). They can donate to us and
take it off their taxes; or they can donate it directly to you; but I'm always willing to accept
money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for your comments.
Member Victorino?

. .. (chuckled) . ..

I appreciate that.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. McCord. You bring up some good
points. My question to you is very simple. We have $100,000 in there right now. Would that
be sufficient to get this plan completed as we had discussed?
MR. McCORD: Yes. My indication from the Public Works Department is we only need $40,000 to
bring that plan back.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. McCORD: And so I would assume that the extra $60,000 then could be seed money for actual
land purchase. The Council may very well--after taking a look at the plan--ask for some
revisions. That's a decision that has not yet been made. But the plan as it stands right now--Iet
me explain just one thing. Steve Holladay and I sat and talked for quite some time about the
impact of this bike path to HC&S; and the design that we came up actually took less sugar land
than the original plan that was drawn. However, he has an area (right below Rainbow Park)
that they have a cow on. They lease it to a rancher. And I said "in order to make this a really
safe path, could we have that whole little ravine?" And he said "yeah, it's only got one cow on
it; take it".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
- 16 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2007

MR. McCORD: Well that's where the $40,000 has to go because they've gotta come back and survey
that area; but what a fantastic addition to Rainbow Park, that open area will be. Then I'm
hoping that that $60,000--if we don't have to use it for too many revisions--can go, directly into
starting to negotiate for land purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Then my other question is: if we left it as is right now--didn't,
put it 'cause as you can see last night, we were trying to put in areas that are what we consider
need areas right now, and I can appreciate that. Then next budget cycle, with the revised plan,
because I think that's what the Council wants to see ... is the revised plan. I think that's very
important. I think the other hang-up was the $10 million. And so maybe we need to go back to
the Administration and ask 'em "where they're getting this figure from" and "why are they
inserting it there" if you are saying that the ... that State fund, or that Federal matching funds
to do the pathway, that $5.6 million that's sitting, that will become available should be enough
to complete the pathway. So there wouldn't be any more money out of pocket for the people of
Maui County.
Again, moving along your same premise--as suggested by Member Anderson--to have a fee,
donation, whatever you want to call it, for the maintenance because these bike companies
would have the primary use. They would benefit in the sense of financially. Yeah? The rest of
us would have the use of it. So I think if you're willing and I thing we're willing to work with
this. I think it's ... the $100,000, we're not shutting it down. But there were other groups that
came and said their plans had been on the books for a long time, like the greenway ... uh ...
Northshore greenway or Paia bike, bikeway or whatever they call it, the Kihei bikeway. You
know, there's other projects that sat around, sat around, and sat around, not being funded, not
being completed. So understand, it's not we don't want that; it's that we felt priorities were
more important in those areas. So continue your good work and hopefully we will be able to
work on this next year and really bring it forward and ... with all the correct facts in line.
Thank you, Mr. McCord.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
MR. McCORD: Could I just respond to that? Do you mind?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sure.
MR. McCORD: I ... uh ... thank you and, you know, all of life is a compromise; and if $100,000
will move this project forward, you know, we're gonna continue to work with you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And just for your infonnation, Members, the total for this
particular project is $9.3 million as indicated in the six-year capital improvement program. Out
of the $9.3 million, $5.6 million will be coming from the STIP program. Thank you. Member
Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Chair, I just wanted to clarify. I think since we're
spending the time to discuss this, it's important to know what the facts are on the record
regarding the cost. Last year's capital improvement program budget for the Baldwin Avenue
bike path--this is a six-year projection for the project--have the cost at $8.8 million. This year's
six-year capital improvement program for the project lists it at $9.3 million, and that is
$500,000 already encumbered for design, previously. This year, the request was $500,000,
$100,000 of it being for design and $400,000 of it being for land acquisition. In 2009 (next
year) an additional $500,000 is budgeted for land acquisition. We're looking at almost a
million dollars in land acquisition. Then in 2010, we have 1,400--excuse me--$1.4 million in
Connty funds for the construction; $5.6 million in Federal funds for the construction; and
$800,000 for construction management; bringing the total to $9.3 million; and my figure of
$10 million was just a roundup because seems like it rounds np every year.
MR. McCORD: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. McCord? Thank you,
Warren, for being here this morning. The next testifier is Susan Fairweather.
MS. FAIRWEATHER: Good morning. My name is Susan Fairweather.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. FAIRWEATHER: I'm the Executive Administrator for the Maui Media Lab Foundation in Paia.
We're a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization and we provide vocational training, a school of
music, apprentice programs, including union professionals such as musicians and editors,
audio-video production and post production, multi-track recording, and we are proud to offer
the Pulelehua Maui Community Television Studio and 2,000 square feel of classrooms. We
support the Maui Film Office, the Maui Arts & Cultural Day, Digital Projection Student Films,
the Hawaii International Film Festival, Digital Production, MEO computer repair, Paia Youth
Center computer repair and radio station instruction. The Paia graffiti abatement, we're very
proud of, and the science mobile build out.
We also support schools such as Hana, Baldwin, King K, Montessori, the University of Hawaii
MCC. We're all volunteers. There's no administrative costs with our organization. We have
50, approximately 50 students per week and over a thousand people per day viewing our
Pulelehua Maui Community Television. (NOTE: She cleared her throat.) Excuse me. Quite a
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few of those come from the Middle East, so it shows that our troops are managing to stay in
touch with their home. Individual and local business contributions since our inception have
been about $100,000, all in support of our basic literacy program, academic and personal
development. We are asking the County to see if we can find support for m,atching that
$100,000. The cost of that would go directly into our rent and CAM, which is about $50,000.
The telecom and infonnation tech services are about $20,000 and then we would like to bring
our services to the outer islands of Lanai and Molokai as well as into Hana; and that is why we .
are looking for the funds from the County. I do have some brochures here for Council
members; if! could pass these out.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
MS. FAIRWEATHER: And I didn't need three minutes ... , (chuckled) ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Thank you for testimony and the infonnation.
Can you explain to me what is your graffiti abatement program?
MS. FAIRWEATHER: Our students, whenever somebody has tagged the town, our students go out
with the white basecoat and take care of the graffiti; and then any of the businesses in town
have ... it's been suggested to please drop off your building's paint color in a can of paint to
our offices and the students will then cover your building with the correct color. We just ...
we were just fed up with the tagging and the defacement of our town. So our students are out
there with paintbrushes and rollers and ... (chuckled) ... you might notice. It sort oflooks like
a patchwork quilt some days with little white blotches everywhere, but we're removing the
graffiti.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that. And do you nonnally do this just in
the Paia area?
MS. FAIRWEATHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And you mentioned Hana. How ... what do you do that
extends to Hana?
MS. FAIRWEATHER: Well the Executive Director, Sam Epstein, of the foundation spent about two
years volunteering teaching in Hana from 2000 to 2002. The Hana High School was also
predominant in helping us get our--we have a science mobile that the MEO donated. Actually,
it was just a bus then. We're in the process of converting it into a science mobile. And Hana
was gracious enough to use their arts department, their ... urn ... what is it? The Industrial
Arts class. Sorry. To help us do the repairs on the bus so that there was no leaking or rusting
and do the welding. But we would like to see what we offer our students here in Paia and the
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. . . well we go all through Maui County, really. We would like to offer that in Lanai and
Molokai as well, to the students over there. We generally work with junior high school students
but we have kupuna as well. Our oldest student is 83 years old .... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. . .. (chuckled) . .. Thank you for the work you do and
your program, and thank you for your testimony.
MS. FAIRWEATHER: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more questions for the
testifier at this time? Seeing none. Thank you very much for being here.
MS. FAIRWEATHER: Thank you, Council.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier is Sally Black Barron. Good morning, Sally.
MS. BARRON: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
MS. BARRON: --and Council members. I'm here today to clarify some budget issues that the
Council came up with in regard to our line item budget for $50,000. I have given each of you a
copy of our full budget for the year. You should each have one of those right now; and then a
little four-page piece that I'm just gonna cover real quickly now, so that you can be very clear
on what our administrative costs are and what the change in our budget is. Last year, the Maui
office of the National Kidney Foundation originally submitted a two-year line item request for
$50,000 in funding for both Fiscal Year 2007-2008. Our intent then and now has been to
utilize that two-year funding to launch a significant and urgent campaign to fight the kidney
disease and kidney failure epidemic here on Maui; and also to build crucial funding streams to
continue our efforts to use this as a window of opportunity for a short period of time to be able
to be self-sufficient on this. We have been very successful in the sense that the County has
really, the partnership of the County has helped us leverage a number of grants this last year,
that you'll see on the front page of our budget, but we're still in the situation of needing some
additional help to continue that effort this year.
Basically, one of the questions that came up, from what I understood, and I have to apologize to
you. I got a really quick call from Chairman, Budget Chairman Pontanilla's office that the
Committee, that the Council had actually asked for information and wanted it and I kind of was
in ... covering for my one and only staff person, who is on workers' compo And so I threw
something together and sent it over, and clearly should have included the page that breaks
down the administration part. I think what's a misnomer on there, as you look through the
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smaller handout I gave you, is if you notice that on the personnel section of this budget sheet.
Last year, we had two sources of other, that were other resources that were not direct staff to
the program. These were free sources to our operation. One was a 30 percent administrative
position paid by Savers. That was temporary. We no longer have that. The other. was that we
had, we have some restrictive grants at our Oahu office to be able to help with this launch of
this epidemic eradication program.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. BARRON: I'm already at three minutes? Oh, gees. Sorry.... (chuckled) ... And anyway, that
is something that just comes so that we can keep with the certification of our National model
standards and with what we're trying to do in Hawaii in this universal effort. Those are ...
those are positions that were in there that I think were misleading to you. The thing that we
were trying to do is to simply be able to raise our one and only direct staff person, that works
.. .(end of tape, start 2A at 10:09 a.m.). .. do these programs from 80 percent time to
100 percent time and the entire transfer of those funds for that position total $7,800, and then
there is another $250. What we're doing is proposing to move those out of ... some of their
other line item-MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MS. BARRON: --that are covered by other grants that we've gotten this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BARRON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sally, just for my clarification. So personnel, you do have two personnel in
the office?
MS. BARRON: There's only myself (and I am full time) and then I have an 80 percent program
person. We both do direct services.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BARRON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Sally, and thank you for coming. Sally, we're trying to
make sense out of all the sheets that we have, and I think the question is one that's very simple.
So you're asking (in your office) understanding that you have money from several sources, not
just from the County grant.
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MS. BARRON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: The total cost of personnel in your office--and I understand there are
two of them, if! heard correctly--is how much?
MS. BARRON: The total cost is (for the two positions) is $87,240; and $36,300 of that is what we're
asking for funding; and the lion share of that is for the direct service staff. The rest comes from
all of the other items that are listed below, grants and fundraising that we do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. I don't think that we want to get so caught up in where the
money comes from for a particular line item; but what we're trying to identify--as we've been
looking at all of the requests, not just yours--is how much money is spent on administration of a
program? Because there's concern that maybe a disproportionate amount of a grant goes to
administration and not to the program. So that's the number that we're really looking for, is
what is your administrative percentage of your office operations?
MS. BARRON: And when you're talking about that, are you just talking about the salaries
themselves?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, administrative costs total.
MS. BARRON: You know, I don't have that breakdown, Gladys, and I should. I apologize. I can
certainly send that over to you today.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You will need to get that to us very, very quickly. We're making our
final budget deliberations and, you know, we can't be playing with this much longer.
MS. BARRON: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So if you could please give that to us ASAP.
MS. BARRON: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. BARRON: Thank you very much. I really appreciate it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Medeiros.

Thank you, Member Baisa.

Members, any more questions?

Member

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Thank you for your testimony. Your organization
is mostly educational for people? You provide inforn1ation, mostly? Is that the ... ?
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MS. BARRON: Well, what we do is ... we do provide infonnation and public awareness; but our
main motivator is to stop this epidemic by providing free screenings (testings) throughout the
County. This year, we wanted to go to Molokai and Lanai as well. That's why w,,'re asking to
increase the direct person, direct staff position. We also do workshops as an ... for
intervention, of people who have early signs or they have diabetes or high blood pressure.
They know they're on a track for getting CKD. And because it's silent, the most important part.
is to get people out, and get them tested, and make them aware that they could be the one in
seven on Maui that has it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. BARRON: We also do some support services for dialysis patients and we do education (self-help
education for them) and actual support groups-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. BARRON: --for those groups.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you do testing throughout Maui County?
MS. BARRON: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And the support services you provide for dialysis patients
is what?
MS. BARRON: What we do is, one, we run support groups for them. We have a number, we have
... urn ... the jewelry (identification jewelry) that we give them. We have small emergency
grants that we raise out of other funds to give to them. Then we also do workshops for people
who are coming on to dialysis so that they know their choices in a very unbiased way; and their
family members and they can figure out the best treatment that they want to pick; and so that
we do that for them too as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And how would outlying areas like Hana request your services in
Hana?
MS. BARRON: Well what we do is for the last several years, we've been involved with the Hana
Health Fair. We've also worked with the Hui at a number, we've gone up and actually done a
full screening up there; but it was a couple years ago, so they are due again. We just try to
spread it throughout the County but we have done that up there. We haven't been able to do
the workshops just because they're like six in a series and the costs of going up and doing that,
we just don't have that money yet.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the Hui you referred to is Hui No Ke Ola Pono?
MS. BARRON: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your testimony.
MS. BARRON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I saw in the Maui News this morning that you're going to have
an event at Maui Mall this weekend.
MS. BARRON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you explain?
MS. BARRON: We're doing a huge testing. Last year, it was one of the most successful ones they
had in the entire State. We do a full testing with lab work that's worth about $200 for the
people who are underinsured or not insured. We also distribute home testing kits as well to
people who are leery about getting a blood stick done; and in those testings, all of our testings
would determine if somebody also has diabetes and high blood pressure. We measure for all of
that in our screenings.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier at this time?
Memb!'lf Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I wanted to make a comment because I think it's really important about
the costs of upgrading the Kidney Foundation office. There's another side to that that I think is
undervalued, and that is what it cost when a person gets into advanced diabetes and that results
in having to amputate a limb or having to have dialysis. The weekly cost of a dialysis treatment
that's thrice--you do it three times a week--is thousands and thousands of dollars per person;
not to mention, the County is spending tremendous amounts of money to transport the dialysis
patients to and from the treatment, and this is un-reimbursed to the County. So if your
advocacy and your information efforts are successful, and in some way we can impact this ever
escalating people that are coming down to critical kidney or renal failure and disease, it's a very
small cost.
MS. BARRON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So please understand that we're aware of that. It's just that we need to
make good responsible decisions with the taxpayers' money; but I think it needs to be
mentioned, that prevention will prevent us fyom spending millions more.
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MS. BARRON: Right. There's a huge return on the prevention part. The other part, when you look at
our costs, is that we use a lot of ... hundreds of volunteers (professional people and laypeople)
to be able to present these programs and we recruit and coordinate those people thilt hold down
on our direct costs. So sometimes that skews our budget as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So thank you very much.
MS. BARRON: Thank you. I really appreciate your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Gladys. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Thank
you, Ms. Barron.
MS. BARRON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier is Jocelyn Perreria.
MS. PERRERIA: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
MS. PERRERIA: --and Council members. My name is Jocelyn Perreria. I'm the Executive
Director/Tri-Isle Main Street Program Coordinator for the Wailnku Main Street
Association/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. I am here today on behalf of the Makawao
Main Street Association and the Paia Main Street Association that would like to just express
support for the Baldwin bike path that has been planned and proposed, that we have had a
substantial amount of involvement in the planning, and workshops, and in looking at the design
of the plans. We want to mention that there is a very important drainage improvement in that
plan that will help Makawao. Those of you who may have been aware with the Barto Project
many, several years back. When it rains very heavily, there is real problems with the water
rolling down Baldwin Avenue and this improvement would really help and assist the ...
remedy that situation. We also express ... uh ... we have, we also have been involved with
discussions with the landowners and they have expressed a willingness to participate; and we
do feel it is important to acquire or to accept corporate land while still affordable and they are
willing to make good on their good faith support of that. The money is available in the STIP
and has been there for some time. The design issues, we know can be resolved pretty quickly;
and within the next two years, we feel that it may be possible to go out to construction. There
are two reasons why this is heavily supported--traffic and pedestrian safety; and we'd like to
retain our unique sense of place. That is very important. It's a scenic highway and affects
residents and tourist as well. We do have a concern about the bike tours that have been, have
proliferated, and is ... continues to be a source of frustration for Makawao and the Paia area.
We hope that at some point there will be a task force convened to look at this issue very closely
and look at what needs to be done; not only in way of passing ... bypassing through towns and
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what have you, but even looking at cost factors and what is the responsibility of a commercial
endeavor relative to providing some support ... means of supporting this particular
improvement for those communities.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Ms. Perreria, and-MS. PERRERlA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --thank you for coming here and sharing your thoughts. Now my
understanding is you're speaking for both the Makawao Main Street and Paia Main Street. Has
both associations discussed, with the issue of the bike path and the cost, from what you've been
hearing, and maybe if you want to share your own opinion. Do you feel it's appropriate that
... should this bike path be constructed? And when the maintenance costs issues arise, should
the commercial tour operators participate and provide monetary resources as wel1?
MS. PERRERIA: I would like to say that this issue of concern started with the Makawao Main Street
Association. Madelyn D'Enbeau was the Chair at that particular time. Mr. Philip Swatek is a
very vocal person and he's the current Chair, and he has very strong concerns about traffic and
safety. Calvin Shibuya with Komoda Store has some very economic concerns on the impacts to
the town. Paia Main Street also fol1owed because of their concerns for what was happening on
the route between Makawao and Paia, and what happens when they get down to the Paia-end of
the route. Now, al1 kinds of discussions took place. We even had one bike tour operator (Brian
Kramer) was the one that came and talked with us. The rest of them decided that that wasn't
important to them at that particular time. They chose instead to go talk with the Kula
Community Association and take care of the Kula concerns, but our concerns stil1 remain.
Now, one of the issues we talked about was "how are you gonna pay for al1 of this?" Wel1 first
of al1, we knew that if we could get some moneys to negotiate some very good acquisition and
the property owners were willing to give us, you know, provide the land for a very affordable
cost that that was gonna make it much less expensive than it would have normal1y have been.
We also note that some of the improvements on the roadways of course is a regular
responsibility of the County.
But one of the things that came up that J thought was very interesting when they talked about
"how you're gonna pay to fund this or maintain it". A while back when Alice Lee was the
Council Chair, I think, they had proposals to put forth monies to ... on, per rider in the bike
tours for some of these improvements; and I believe they were even more expensive than what
you folks have talked about recently.
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Another point that was made was--and the Council may not be aware--is an interesting fact.
You know, the big trucks that drive along the roadways (the semis and the tandem trucks and
whatnot) most people don't realize that in order for them to do business, they have to pay an
extra tax above and beyond what the normal motorists will pay to use the roadways. It's called
the heavy equipment ... uh ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Road tax.
MS. PERRERlA: Yes. Thank you. It's heavy equipment tax so that they can use the same roads that
the nonnal pedestrian does. So it would seem to us, when we had this discussion, that it is in
the best interest of the industry--if they want to continue having an industry--to kick in too. So
the answer is "yes". That's the short answer.... (chuckled) ... That it will be real important
to kick into this fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chainnan.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me. Thank you, Chair. Just real quickly, Jocelyn. This
is the first time I've ever heard that the design of this bike path is going to alleviate drainage
problems.
MS. PERRERIA: Vb-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so I think that's one of the reasons why we need to see this
design. We need to see more about, you know, how it's going to alleviate drainage and what,
you know, it's hard for me to conceive how the bike path is gonna solve that, but if you say it
is, then I take your word for it, but we need to see, you know. How much ofthis $9.3 million is
actually for drainage mitigation?
MS. PERRERlA: I spoke--just this moming--with your Public Works Director, Milton Arakawa, and I
told him that I was gonna come up here and inform the Council that our position (from our
standpoint) one of our strong reasons for making sure you understand the importance of this
bike path was the drainage improvements that are included in the plan. I told him but I didn't
think that some of you were aware of that. I'm sure if you contact his office, he will be glad to
let you know that these improvements were a part of the plan and are a part of the plan.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you for that information
in regards to the drainage. I don't think any of us knew about the particular drainage that was
included in the plan, and thank you very much for noting that. Members, any more questions
for the testifier? Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Because of the drainage thing, I wanted to ask
something. So are you representing that the plan for the bike path includes drainage
improvements?
MS. PERRERIA: Yes, that's our understanding because when we participated in the discussions of
what should go into the plan (that took place at Eddie Tam Memorial Center) that was one of·
the things. I believe David Goode was the Director of Public Works at that time. That was one
of the concerns and the issues brought to bear by the community at that time. That if we're
gonna do this improvement, can we do that at the same time? Because, you know, I mean lot of
... (chuckled) ... I tell you Upcountry guys, especially, they get so irritated when they see one
project go and then you gotta tear up the roads again and then do something else over. It's like
why can't we do two things at once and maybe save some money and take care of two
problems, so that's how that came about.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So in your conversation this morning with the Director of
Public Works and Environmental Management, he's aware that the Department is playing a part
in this plan for drainage improvements?
MS. PERRERIA: Yes, he is. As a matter of fact, I believe it was two years ago, in the Mayor's
lounge, when we had a discussion with the bike tours and Mr. McCord's group and all of the
groups. Mr. Arakawa was a little disconcerted because a lot of work and effort went into trying
to get this STIP money (this State Transportation money) and the money was readily available
there, so it was like an opportunity to make an expensive project less-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. PERRERIA: --more affordable for the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: All right. So yeah, I think ...
MS. PERRERIA: So he's very aware.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So we'll have discussions with him on that. Thank you for
your testimony.
MS. PERRERIA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more questions? Thank you.
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MS. PERRERIA: May I just say? I watched all of you till almost midnight and on behalf of our
organization, we thank you so much for your support. With your due diligence and hard work,
we know you're doing the best for us and we really trust that you're gonna make the right
decisions, and we support you in that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, the next testifier is Joanne Ide. Good morning.
MS. IDE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee. My
name is Joanne Ide, and I oversee the Integrated Resource Planning and Customer Efficiency
Division at Maui Electric. I am providing testimony in support of funds MECO will be
requesting from the Office of Economic Development's budget in the form of a grant that
continues our efforts of the Maui Solar Roofs Initiative, which encourages the use of renewable
energy. I believe you also have a copy of the testimony.
Okay, just to give you some background on the program. Since 2002, the County of Maui and
MECO have been working together to promote the use of renewable energy in Maui County by
increasing the number of solar water heating systems installed in residences throughout the
County through the Maui Solar Roofs Initiative. Grants from the County establish a
zero-interest-revolving-loan fund that breaks down the first cost barrier of installing a solar
water heating system. The loan covers the cost not supported by MECO's $1,000 rebate and
the Hawaii State Renewable Energy Tax Credit of 35 percent of the installed costs. The loan
payments are equal to the expected savings from the use of a solar water heating system, so the
applicant sees little or no added monthly expense. As loans are repaid, the funds are
replenished and we can make available more to support more applicants. About 55 percent of
the solar water heating systems were installed under the direct-grant funding, and 45 percent of
were installed using the revolving component.
The population target group is Maui County's year-round residents, with preference given to
lower income households, and this program was initially designated or designed as a
million-dollar-revolving fund; and sincc 2002, September, a total of $550,000 have been
designated for the fund through ... for grants. The program allows families of all income
levels, the opportunity to participate and benefit from the savings derived by using solar water
heating systems. The County of Maui provides the financing and MECO administers the
zero-interest loans to eligible families for the installation of a solar water heating system, which
significantly reduces their electricity bill by as much as 40 percent. We believe this program
will support our common goals of encouraging the use of a renewable energy resource,
assisting residents to reduce their energy payments thereby making their homes more
affordable, and helping to support the solar industry.
Thank you for this opportunity to submit testimony in support of OED's budget. What I'd like
to do, on the second page, is just to provide or point out some statistics and status of the for
grants. From October 2002, which is the beginning of the grant, till first quarter of this year,
which goes till then end of March ...
- 29-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2007

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. IDE: Oops. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Continue.
MS. IDE: Okay. I can take questions.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Wait, you have another minute.
MS. IDE: Oh!
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: You have another minute.
MS. IDE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Unless you want to come back, and we'll give you three minutes more.
MS. IDE: No, that's okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
MS. IDE: I'll try and go through this.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. IDE: Okay. For about four and a half years, we received 515 applications of which a little bit
under 400 were approved. We have a waiting list of twelve. But the waiting list doesn't really
accurately reflect how much demand is out there, and as the next testifier may provide some
information on how this helps this whole industry and what happens when we don't have, you
know, lots of funds. So in other words, when we have funds available, we have on average
about 20 applications a month submitted to us; and when we don't have funds and we're ...
there's a waiting list, that drops down to about seven a month because at that time, the solar
contractors know that, you know, this may not be the best way to have a system installed and
they try and find other financing mechanisms. So the waiting list at this, the waiting time for
an installation (at this point in time) is about two months. That's the waiting time. Okay. The
average loan amount is about $2,600.
MR. T AGUCHI: Four minutes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. IDE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you can't finish up in one minute, I'm sure you're gonna get plenty
questions.
MS. IDE: Oh, okay. . .. (chuckled) . " All right. I'll just keep going. Average loan term is about
five years, a little bit under five years. We have zero defaults. At this point in time, we have
276 active loans and 115 have been paid off completely. We have about 10 out of 17 active
contractors who use this loan on a regular basis. Of that 276 active loans, it provides about
$13,800 a month back into the revolving loan fund, in which case, we can turn around and do
about four to five more loans per month. Let's see. Okay. I guess at this point I can take
questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Joanne, and thank you for being here. There was a
discussion in regards to this when we were going through the Budget.
MS. IDE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And it seems like, in your testimony, you mention a commitment for a
million-dollar-revolving fund.
MS. IDE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And maybe we're having a little amnesia here, but the question was:
"why do we keep giving money to this when it's a revolving fund?" Monies should be put in,
come back, and you know, just keep the fund up all the time; but apparently, we haven't
reached the full million-dollar deposit yet.
MS. IDE: It was designed as getting a million dollars from the County's Budget to put into this fund.
The $550,000 is where we are right now, and that revolves, you know. Monies come back in
from the grants or the loans that we can make. As you can see, or just to give you some history,
when it first was designed, there was no experience with a program such as this. That's why
rather than giving us a million dollars to start, we started with $250,000, and saw whether it
was successful or not. As each year went by, the Council (the County) gave us $100,000 to add
to the fund, and it's been a very successful program at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: A follow-up question on that.
MS. IDE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: How successful are you in recovering payment?
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MS. IDE: We're very successful. We have zero defaults.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's an excellent payment record.
MS. IDE: Yes ... , (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Any bank would envy you a lot. You just put it on the electric bill. Is
that how it works?
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
MS. IDE: Actually, it's a separate bill. But how we design the amount that the payment is gonna be is
in terms of ... when you install a solar water heater system on your home, how much
electricity are you offsetting because you have that solar water heater; and that's how much we
charge in terms of a monthly payment. So instead of paying the maybe $50 a month back to
MECO, through electric bill, they're paying the $50 a month to this revolving loan fund, paying
off their loan; and eventually, when it's repaid--on average, after five years--they're not paying
us for the loan or the electricity.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: And so every month when the payments are made, it-MS. IDE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --goes back into the fund and becomes available for reprogramming
for another family?
MS. IDE: Correct.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. And those payments run about how much, an
average payment?
MS. IDE: Average about $50. What we've seen, just you know, looking back historically, is there's
about a little bit under $15 of savings per person a month. So the loan is, when the system is
sized for a family, we look at you know, what the hot water usage is, and we try to gauge out
well "how many people are in the house; and how much water are you using?" So it's typically
about $50.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: One last question and I'll stop. Many years ago, you know, I was
involved in solar water heating through MEO.
MS. IDE: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And we used to say that the hot water heater was about 40 percent of
the bill. What is tbat now?
MS. IDE: We're still seeing about that amount. If your household does not have air-conditioning, then
it could be about 40 percent. If it does have air-conditioning, then it may be less because, you
know, the air-conditioner will then take a bigger piece of the pie.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I guess if you live in Kihei, that's a problem. In Kula, we don't need
air-conditioning. Thank you very much.
MS. IDE: You're welcome. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you. And thank you very much, Joanne, for your
presentation.
MS. IDE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is very enlightening. Like everything else, until we get all
the facts in front of us, it's very difficult to make decisions.
MS. IDE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was curious on the comment or on your presentation that the
population target is the ... is ... the target group is the Maui County year-round residents.
MS. IDE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What determines a year-round resident, in your definition?
MS. IDE: What we're looking for is that someone is in that household, basically, for twelve months of
the year. I mean it's okay to go on vacation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yeah. Well ... (chuckled) ... thank you.
MS. IDE: Yeah .... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I'm glad you said that because some people were getting
really--
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OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --really excited about that part.
MS. IDE: So you do qualify.... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, thank you very much. Not that we have vacations very'
much in this Council, but moving right along.
MS. IDE: Okay. What we're not looking for is someone who may have perhaps a second or third
residence, who does not stay on-island or on the three islands throughout the year; so maybe
50 percent of the time, they're not here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm curious. Rentals would qualify?
MS. IDE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right?
MS. IDE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If I, you know, if someone had a rental and they had permanent
residence. What I'm curious to find out is: let's say you do this loan. Right?
MS. IDE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And a year later, that person sells the home, which I hope
doesn't happen very often, but let's be realistic. It does.
MS. IDE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How do you recover the loan? Is it from the new buyer
continues the payment? Or the previous owner (the seller) is the one that has to pay the loan
off?
MS. IDE: Okay. What ... it ... it's quite complicated. I mean, ideally ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn't mean to get complicated. . .. (chuckled) . .. Oh, my.
Sorry.
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MS. IDE: We do try and say, in the grant or the loan agreement, that the person who applies for it is
responsible for the loan. If say they sell the home, they may recoup the cost, right, of
everything through the house. When you're selling the house, we should be asking for the
balance of the loan to be paid off. That's not always possible because we aren't always able to
identify who sells a house. Or for that matter, who moves out of it, and then starts to rent out
that unit as well and still keeps the electric bill under their name. So ideally, we like to recover
the cost-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. IDE: --or the balance of the loan from the original applicant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But seeing that you have some a tremendous rate of default. I
mean excellent. I mean you can't beat that. I guess it's ... somehow it's been working out?
MS. IDE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then the final question. You know, you say that each
year, we've been building up to the million-dollar commitment that the County made a number
of years ago. And so at this rate, we're still a few years off .. . (end of tape. start 2B at
10:40 a.m.). .. then and you guys won't be coming back for more money. That should be
enough funding to keep this program going.
MS. IDE: I wouldn't ... I'm not sure whether that would be enough funding, and that's why we
always look for other opportunities with working with ... trying to get sources other than the
County. And we have done that through, you know, grants with say the u.S. Department of
Agriculture; or right now, we're working with say a credit union. I think there's a lot of
untapped resources as well as there are many more people out there that can take advantage or
would like to take advantage of some kind of mechanism like this. So it's great if you can
provide some more; and at the same time, we are going to other sources to go look for other
funding sources.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Joanne?
MS. IDE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could you answer this? Just in single family homes (single
family dwellings) you know, not using condos or any other thing. What percentage of
dwellings in the County of Maui have solar heating today? You must have some kind of idea.
MS. IDE: Okay. Unfortunately, it's not a number that I brought with me; but I do have it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could we have that?
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MS. IDE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean, you know, could you-MS. IDE: Sure thing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --send it to the Chair and he'll then pass it on?
MS. IDE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because I think that's important to see--if this program is doing
the sustainability that we all talk about. You know, solar is one of the major areas that (major
components) in the sus ... , asus ... , astance ... , whew, sustainability. Oh you stay up all night, you
get hard time the next morning .... (chuckled) ... That we put in our components, yeah?
MS. IDE: Db-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I would like to know, and I think many of the Members
would like to know the numbers so that we can see if this is really achieving what we all feel it
should.
MS. IDE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you for your efforts, and continue the good work.
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. I have one question.
MS. IDE: Could I just maybe answer a little bit to your question? I don't have the number with me,
but I want to say that when we compare Maui County relative to the other counties within the
state has a higher percentage per, you know, per capita than any other County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, that sounds ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Maui always is number one in-MS. IDE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --all these, you know, what I call leading edge areas. You know,
the rest of the counties are still trying to catch up with us. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. My question is that we ,do have an
affordable housing just outside Waikapu, which is the Spencer Homes project.
MS. IDE: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There is ... well, when they were built, there were 200 affordable homes
that were created. The total subdivision is 400. Of the affordable housing side, did you have
any loans in regards to providing solar heating systems at that particular subdivision?
MS. IDE: At that subdivision, we haven't done any kind of loans with Spencer Homes. However,
Spencer Homes has made the determination that they would do it all solar. So we've been
working with them as well as with their contractor, who's doing the installation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And they would qualify for this revolving fund?
MS. IDE: It wasn't meant necessarily to go to a developer; and I guess that's kind of one of the nice
things that Spencer Homes did. They did it on their own.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
MS. IDE: And when they're doing like new construction, it's the best time to do it because the cost is
even lower because you can build it into the house.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? None. Thank
you very much, Joanne, for being here this morning.
MS. IDE: Okay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Joanne.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, the Chair is aware of the time. I'm gonna have Mr. Sutrov
provide his testimony; and after Mr. Sutrov is done, we'll take our midmorning break. When
we come back, we have about four more testifiers. Thank you. Steve Sutrov?
MR. SUTROV: Good morning, Council. My name is Steve Sutrov. I too was watching you until
12 midnight last night and it was nice to have the ability to watch our government work and it's
a very nice amenity of Akaku, and I ... I was entertained.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: '" (laughter) ...
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MR. SUTROV: I mean ... (chuckled) ... it was more than that; it was. I'm here for ... to talk about
two things quickly.
The first thing, I'll go with what has already been discussed. I support the separated bike paths
on Baldwin Avenue. I've been ... I'm Director on the Outdoor Circle also along with
... uh ... Director of the Kula Community Association. The Kula Community Association
hasn't taken a position on this; but I have advocated with all the discussions on the bike tours. I
am by far a bike tour advocate. I've come out strongly for regulation on them at many, many a
time, and I recommend that whenever possible, we separate their activity from the main roads.
If we could have separate bike lanes for their activity, I'd definitely recommend this. Baldwin
Avenue is a special place, too. It's a ... it's, it's a his!..., for me, it's with the historic buildings
on that road, the shower trees, it's a beautiful drive. To think about widening it or adding
turnout lanes, it would change the character of that scenic drive. A separate bike lane seems
appropriate for that road, especially if you think about planned communities, such as Lake
Tahoe has separate bike lanes, which almost go around the entire lake. It's a beautiful amenity
for a community to have such a, such a ... such as that. For safety mainly, separating bicycle
traffic from the main traffic was my main concern on Baldwin Avenue, also. It's for the
residents. The residents are the ones who travel the road. The ones that go to church, go to
school, go to work; and so that separate bike path is for the residents and for those residents
that want to get exercise pedaling uphill at times. So all right. So that was that for that.
Also, I'm here to speak in support of the funding for tennis courts in Kula; but if not Kula,
Upcountry. On ... on, it seems that there, I do support the plan of Kula tennis courts and at the
proposed site; but there are ... it seems that there are possible concerns with the lease of the
property at the present time. If that could be worked out, that would be great. For two more
additional courts at the Kula site and keeping the master plan intact for the future of six courts,
eventually. So, we can have our junior tennis club and major programs up there, which I think
our community would be able to enjoy immensely and it's something that's been planned for a
while now; but there is a plan now (an alternative plan) that Mr. Everett Dowling has proposed
to ... uh ... in four days. It was amazing. He got together a proposal for four courts in his
Kulamalu site with a bottom-line figure that is fairly high also; but me, myself, weighing the
pros and cons quickly, it seems to be kind of a wash between the two projects as far as the cost
and benefits.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. SUTROV: But I'd be willing to settle for what the Maui overall tennis community would want,
which would be higher court inventory, and getting four courts in Pukalani. We still have our
two in Kula with a potential maybe after things settle down at that site in Kula that we can
fulfill a couple more courts up there. So I am here for any questions that you might have on
either one of those topics. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Sutrov, before I ask the Members if they have any
questions, I do have one that I'd like to ask you at this time. You mentioned Upcountry or
Kula. Several of us had some discussion in regards to the park below the fire station, if there
were land available, and I think the cost of providing the courts for Kula probal:)ly would be
much less. Is there a preference as far as where the tennis courts go?
MR. SUTROV: You mentioned the park--the ballpark?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The ballpark below the fire station.
MR. SUTROV: Yeah. It seems like ... I would think--having been a soccer coach for my girls when
they were brought up--that field is used often. I'd hate to think about taking one of the only
level areas (that and Keokea) and taking that field and cutting it up for another use when it's
already probably maxed out with soccer, and softball, and just passive use at times. I wouldn't
... I'd feel very selfish in proposing something like that. Although the area of Waiakoa is a
special area, as far as weather conditions, that is--by the ballpark area or that area in Kula--it's
still in the envelope of definitely being a beautiful area, where there is limited rain, limited
wind, cool cloud cover, and perfect for tennis.
Pukalani is, you know, it's not as nice as Kula but it's better tennis than Makawao or Haiku
area. So that's probably ... I took a tour of maybe about five or six sites in Kula, the other day,
of ... urn ... it was some parkland designated for, I think, on the von Tempsky's property and
a few others right on Kula Highway, off of Kula Highway. There didn't seem anything that
right away looked like it was gonna be easily developed, like the Kula site that we're talking
about right now. It seems like most of the sites are gonna take quite a bit of grading, retaining
walls, and such; and so to find a parcel that is gonna take limited work in Kula might be a
challenge. The Kula park or community center park area right now, it does have one very nice
level area that could accommodate two tennis courts fairly easily with no site work at all; and
that is where the existing gate ball court is at. It would take up half the parking lot and that
could be moved also. If the gate ball community, which I have not approached lately, would be
receptive to. They want four ... two full courts eventually somewhere. If we could find a
suitable location for them, our courts could go maybe where they are right now; and the
roadway, which has to be realigned for the upper property, would not have to be done. So that
is what's the idea; and it should be, somebody should give it some thought. I have, but it's out
of my area.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. As far as the gate ball park for the seniors, they utilize that
particular gate ball park quite often; and I think a good reason why it's there is because they
also go to the senior programs at Kula Community Association.
MR. SUTROV: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Sutrov at this time? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. Thank you very much, Mr. Sutrov. I know you've worked very
hard on this and I know how dear this project is to my constituents and my neighbors in Kula. I
can tell you that the more I hear and the more I learn, I would like to. Later on today, we'll be
discussing this and we'll be meeting with the Parks Director. I am kind of feeling that my
inclination would be to request that we preserve the funding; and that we pursue actively your
ideas and the other Dowling proposal, as well as the current proposal; and that we come up
with an answer; and that we help the people in Kula to get the tennis courts. But I don't want
to scrap any of the options at this point because there's too many unanswered questions, but we
do want to make a decision that is best for the folks in Kula. Thank you.
MR. SUTROV: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony. And you mentioned about the
junior tennis program and needing so many courts in close proximity to each other and also,
you know, because I played in the ... many of the team tennis leagues on Maui, and you want
the increase in courts to benefit that also. As you look at alternative sites, isn't it best to have
sites that are in close proximity to your existing courts now, in order to serve that kind of
leagues and tournaments?
MR. SUTROV: Well as you probably know, it's best to have ... in most leagues, if we're talking
about interscholastic, MIL, or you're talking about USTA leagues. Some leagues, it's nice to
have at least five courts; but other leagues, you only ... you need four. Three you can play on,
and leave one open for the public. If we had four in Pukalani and two in Kula, it's still close
enough to where we could schedule matches and use both facilities and still have maybe one
court open for the public, during those matches are happening. Ideally, like Wells park (having
six courts in one area) or Lahaina Civic Center court complex, that is what you hope to have
and you need to have if you're gonna have a junior tennis program, where you have lessons
going on and you have competition occasionally. If you hope to grow in ... the tennis in your
community, it's nice to have a six-court complex; but having two courts here and four courts
there (in Pukalani and Kula) we'd make it work. I mean it'd be so much more than what you
have right now. It would be very nice.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you're saying that that's in close enough proximity to
work. When you take into consideration Pukalani and Kula and if there's courts that are
constructed in between that area, that will make it work?
MR. SUTROV: Absolutely. No less than two courts at a time, though.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, thank you for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier at this time? Thank you very
much, Steve, for being here.
MR. SUTROV: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the Chair will call our midmorning break. It's five to eleven right
now and we'll return at 11: 1O. This meeting is in recess. . .. (gavel) ...

RECESS:

10:55 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:15 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting
reconvened. The Chair would like to recognize Member Johnson. Good morning.

IS

now

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier this morning is Steve Allen. Mr. Allen?
MR. ALLEN:. Good morning, Council members. Congratulations for eaming your position, your
ability to serve the community here. I'm Steve Allen. I'm President of Allen's Plumbing. And
although plumbing is our company's focus, I've been participating in the solar industry since
1981. I'm kind of on the heels of Joanne's testimony, particularly involving what you guys
know as the Maui Solar Roof Initiative and I call the MSRI Program. I think she's pretty
stunning in the fact that she has 100 percent performance on her alone program. Since that's
not a question of its ability to take care of itself, I think the real question here is how are we
gonna take care of the program. I would like to kind of go--and I've heard some questions and
statements and I'd like to kind of figure out really what the real goal here is. Tax credits have
always been the driving force of solar system residential hot water since it's been in the
community. Back in the seventies into the eighties, Federal/State was always the driving force.
Wnen the Federals dropped in '85, systems went down to almost zero installations. The State
came back into it in '91 and up and up it went.
The retrofit market is really the area of concern with the utility company. What I would like to
educate a little bit here on is that being involved in it in all manners, I've seen it through
commercial installations, and Maui Electric funds with their program (their co-payment
program) it's strictly a conversion of electric water heaters to a solar system in order to get the
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rebate of $1,000. We also take customers that use gas water heaters, so that's a part of the
market that's not being really discussed much but it does exist. Once again, though, what
really is the goal of, I think, first off in the last few years (politically speaking) getting rid of oil
consumption. Every system is taking care of about seven barrels of oil a year and 33,000
systems have been installed in this utility program since 1997. If you want to do the math,
that's a whole lot of oil. However you want to look at it (politically, financially) the reality
here is that the people who need the solar systems the most are the people who can afford it the
least. A few years back, and many of you were not here in the Council at the time. It was my
only other time in visiting and speaking, was about what this program did for a company and its
ability to sell the systems and put them into the community. There is a positive benefit and the
tax credits have always, already been proven. For every dollar of tax credit issued, the State
returns $1.87 in value. That is not a debatable fact or a statement. It's in the figures that
created the tax credit to exist. What we see as an industry here is the retrofit market is truly
what we're looking for in this MSRI Program.
And number one, the MECO Program, which is also the HELCO and the HECO because I
participate on all three islands. This MSRI Program is by far the finest financial program I've
ever seen in any other programs and I've ... in other states. I don't know of any other state
that has it. The customer has to pay 35 percent, so they're financially invested into the system.
The balance is what's financed through their savings. One ofthe things that I've always been a
little bothered about with utility companies, they're so conservative and they have to be though
for the position they're in. This savings of $10 and $15, it's just not true and it doesn't
mathematically work. At 28-30 cents a kilowatt--which is our rates these days--and the
20 gallons a day per person, it simply works out that we're at $20 a month per person per
savings. So when they take recovery funds of $15, $10 per person per family, what we're
doing is we're not feeding that recovery fund (or that revolving fund) fast enough. But the
reality here is that a bunch of years ago when Mayor Apana was in and this program got
started, it was about a request for a million dollars; and it was not Council members' fault that
it didn't get the million dollars. The program was-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. ALLEN: --just brought to you too quickly and so the $250,000 was truly kind of a gift because
they didn't have everything in place. Well it's proven that it works but the negative has always
been the funds aren't there, and I cannot have a sales force and tell them to use this program for
the benefit of the community (benefit of our customer) when that funds are not there because
the salesperson has to make a living also. So if they have to wait two, three, four months,
which is what they're being told right now; and other times, it hasn't been available for six,
seven, eight, nine months at a time. Then they can't use it. They don't get it into their sales
program. We can't utilize it, and the benefit to the community is not there. Every time I hear
about people requesting for money, I'd like to remind the situation. Here's that ... this is the
people's money; it's being paid back to the people; and the people are using it. It's not going
into concrete.
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MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. ALLEN: And I guess that's my time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well you can conclude, one sentence.
MR. ALLEN: Well, you know, it's not like it's going into concrete or anything else. I mean this is a
fund that's a revolving fund. It's the people's money, and it's being utilized by the people. It's
being administered for free by the utility company with zero interest. I mean if anybody can
get a better than zero interest loan, point it to me. So, I applaud the utility company for being
involved with this program to begin with. It levels the playing field. The customer is
guaranteed a quality system that works for years and years and years. It takes all the blue suede
shoe stuff that was going on back in the Federal program days out, and so that part is very
important to me. Any questions you might have, I have 26 years of information for you in the
industry, and I'm here for free.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ALLEN: So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier at this time? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Allen, for corning forth to testifY
this morning and for providing us this information. So you do sell and install solar water
heating systems?
MR. ALLEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Do you also provide the maintenance? And that, the
reason I ask that is in former part-time employment, I used to sell solar water heating systems;
and following up on those systems was the requirement for maintenance or repair or
replacement parts. So do you also provide that service to your customers that you sell the units
to?
MR. ALLEN: Well as a service company, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you have the replacement parts and the maintenance?
MR. ALLEN: Yes. Everything's available at all times.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. That's good to hear because sometimes there's
some companies that just sell it and install it, and then you can't find them, you know. So I'm
glad you've been here for a long time. I know your company, and I'm glad to hear that ... that
you would be able to provide the whole package through the customers here in Maui County.
Thank you, Mr. Allen. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chamnan. Good morning, Mr. Allen, and thank you for
being here and giving us the contractors' perspective of this matter. I see your vans on the road
a lot, so I know you're very busy and ...
MR. ALLEN: Well, I hope they're not speeding too much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no, no. . .. (chuckled) . .. You guys are ... that's a good sign
when you're out there a lot. In terms of the equipment itself, you mentioned you've had
26 years of historical knowledge about this. The equipment now (the solar heaters now) are
much more efficient, technology-wise and the customers that are receiving it today, they're
getting ...
MR. ALLEN: No more technology on a hot water thermal solar system now than it was 20 years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: The difference now is that they're controlled by a utility company, by inspections,
installed proper/y, and functioning proper/yo
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So basically, it's the same thing that first came on the market years
ago?
MR. ALLEN: Well, we can say there is some ... I mean the difference is very minor. Twenty-five
years ago, there was copper pipe and a panel and it heated the water. It's the same situation
today. The solar water heater is a water heater. It's been a water heater; it's been a water
heater. So there's really no difference. The pumps are the same, and then there's systems that
sit on the roof that don't have pumps. I mean there's different types.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Vb-huh.
MR. ALLEN: But essentially speaking, I mean we're in a great enviromnent, and there's no real tricks
to it. There's no freeze control. So it's just hot water running through a pipe, and getting
heated, and back to the use for the user.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, great. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier at this time?
Thank you very much, Mr. Allen, for being here this morning. The next testifier is Lucienne
deNaie. . .. (pause) ... Good morning.
MS. deNAIE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla. Good morning, Members of the Budget Committee.
My name is Lucienne deNaie and I am testifying as a private citizen today. I want to thank you
all for setting these long hours. Those folks who write letters to the newspaper and say that the
Council should just do the Budget and keep out of business, I'm very glad you're here asking
the hard questions because govermnent should have two branches as far as I'm concerned, and
we need the Council to be active and involved. I'm here today to testify in support of a number
of items that are in our Budget annually, including support for Community Work Day, which is
a fabulous program that my neighborhood has really benefited from; the Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens, which just did a wonderful community celebration and is really a credit to our
community for how far it's come in terms of the education it provides and how good it looks;
and also the proposal to establish a materials-recovery facility (a MRF). This is a very, very
important step forward. I was on committees ten years ago and the Haiku Community
Association, where we were hoping that this would be coming into existence. It looks like it's
on its way. I also want to support what ex-Councilmember Nishiki said earlier about the
funding for Honolua. It may help you to know that the Save Honolua Coalition is in the
process of obtaining its charitable status 501(c)(3); and as of two weeks ago, Maui Tomorrow,
of which I'm the Acting President, agreed to act as a mentor and fiscal sponsor for this process
and our legal advisor has drawn up the papers and they'll be presented tomorrow to the Board
of the Save Honolua Coalition. I might say that this same arrangement was made when Maui's
first open space trust forum (Maui Open Space Trust) back in '96 or '97, Maui Tomorrow was
the fiscal sponsor for that; and they were also the fiscal sponsor for the Maui Coastal Land
Trust. So we're happy to play this role to an organization that we think will really be
benefiting our preservation of open space and lands. I also want to speak to that. I have some
concerns, having gone over many of the documents that are forecasting our socio-economic
trends as a member of GPAC that we are forecasting that we're, in many areas of our island,
gonna have greater growth in visitors than we are in our residential population.; and as you're
probably all aware of, we have the highest proportion of visitors to residents here. I want to
speak to the idea that we need to find sources of funding to protect the lands that local people
use--and of course, they're open to visitors as well--and these are a legacy lands. They're not
just in Honolua Bay. They are also in places like Spreckelsville. You mentioned Baldwin
Beach Park. Well Baldwin Beach Park is not owned by the people. The County owns one acre
between Paia and Spreckelsville, and the rest is on a lease and a promise. Mr. Vicens,
representing A&B, announced that all their coastal lands will be for sale. So we need to be
thinking about this future. The lands in Hana (the Hana coastlands)--
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MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. deNAIE: --are also at risk and need protection, lands in Olowalu. So I am suggesting that one of
the things that we might look at is as we give money to support the tourism industry, can we
give less from the Maui side and use some of that to leverage additional funds to purchase
some of these lands? I wonder if we know the impact of the shifts in the tourism industry that
are proposed; such as, the loss of revenues when you have the majority of people going to
timeshares rather than hotels. This affects employment. This affects what people spend in the
community. This affects many long-range factors. And I would hope that this Council knows
when the tipping point is ... that if we have less than a certain number of hotels, our TAT rate
is just not gonna be available to fund some of these wide net of social programs and things like
land acquisition that the community wants and needs.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MS. deNAIE: Thank you. I would advise this Committee to rather than just up the amount of funds
that they are giving to promote tourism--and this is not to denigrate the good efforts of Terryl
because she's done a great job for this County, but this is a pragmatic decision--please get the
facts on where our tipping points is. If that needs an additional study, go for it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Lucienne, for coming down this
morning. You were saying in the socio-economic study that the GPAC is working off of, that
the projections in that study show an increase. Did you say a percentage increase?
MS. deNAIE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: What ...
MS. deNAIE: An incremental percentage increase in visitor numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what was that percentage?
MS. deNAIE: I'm sorry. I was going around through my car this morning looking for the right book
and I didn't bring it with me. Normally, I have my handouts, so I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: No, that's okay.
MS. deNAIE: But I ...
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: It doesn't matter.
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MS. deNAIE: You know, it's online.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MS. deNAIE: It's online.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah, and I have a copy of it.
MS. deNAIE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But that's not really that important. What's more important is
... (end a/tape, start 3A at 11:30 a.m.). " In other words, market demand.
MS. deNAIE: My understanding is that they are what you would call extrapolations. In other words,
if things keep going based on what we've seen ... and they did take into account that we have
better years and worse years; and if I recall correctly, they were trying to sort of average that
out. I'm sorry I don't have the details on that, but I was a little shocked by it. I even thought
like "gee, maybe we want to have a carrying capacity of how many visitors we actually can and
want to serve each year". And that might actually reduce some of the amount of money that we
have to spend to attract visitors here because we've become a little bit more exclusive place. I
don't want to keep anybody out but, you know, it is sort of overrun. Hana Highway is really
having its impacts as a-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. deNAIE: --resident in that area.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah. We're seeing the impacts everywhere. And the reason I'm
asking the question is because, you know, when we plan our future, we're supposed to be
planning our growth projections based on the desired increase in the visitor industry and
resident population, not based on the market demand that has been established let's say over the
last five to ten years during this accelerated growth.
MS. deNAIE: Well, I hope the Council can weigh in on that when they are, you know, going over the
update of the general plan and make sure that the people's desire--at what levels this is going to
be expressing itself--is met. But meanwhile, I'm concerned about the jobs because the cruise
ships don't provide the same kind of jobs or the same kind of taxation benefits as do a hotel
room and yet they are hotel rooms, and the impacts are huge. If you talk to folks from the
union, they'll only talk to you off the record, but they are extremely concerned.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, me too.
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MS. deNAIE: And I would just advise this Council to get that infonnation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions for the testifier this morning? If not, thank
you, Lucienne, for being here.
MS. deNAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The last testifier signing up before the meeting convened is Mr. Roy
Katsuda. If there is anyone out there that wants to testify at this time, please come forward and
sign up with the Committee Secretary. Mr. Katsuda?
MR. KATSUDA: Thank you. Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Council members. I appreciate
your efforts late last night. I have to tell you though, I went to bed when I went home .
. . . (chuckled) . .. Sorry. Anyway, my name is Roy Katsuda. I'm the Executive Director for
Hale Mahaolu. Apparently, there is a $100,000 line item for housing counseling program for
Hale Mahaolu in the '07-08 proposed Budget. Although I did not hear firsthand the comments
offered yesterday morning, let me offer some of my comments. Hale Mahaolu team (Keri
Kalilikane and myself) have not ... were not aware that there was this $100,000 line item in
the '07-08 Budget. We did not request one. $100,000 was appropriated in last year's budget
(last year for '06-07) meaning the current year budget. The contract has taken some time to
develop. Per the Housing Division, the proposed contract is for 18 months, ending
June 30, 2008. This has been sent up to the Department of Housing and Human Concerns
Director on March 22nd • In the meantime, we have continued to offer housing counseling
services (reverse mortgage, homebuyers' education classes) for the past--well, let's see? Eight,
88 ... uh ... almost 18 years. This included the Lokahi Pacific's Kuha Village single family
homes that they sold recently. For the past nine months, Keri tells me that we have served 197
households. Hale Mahaolu became a HUD approved housing counseling agency in 1989.
There has been little or no funding for housing counseling (rent, reverse mortgages, or
homebuyers' education). Most of those years, Hale Mahaolu used its own funds to continue
this program. The appropriation for the current '06-'07 year is significant and I would say that
it would seem only fair that this contract is executed ASAP. We have not submitted any
request for reimbursements, mainly because we don't have a contract. The $100,000 line item
for '07-'08 Budget (in our opinion) is not necessary, especially since the '06-'07 has yet to be
executed. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Katsuda. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you, Mr. Katsuda, for coming this morning. I'm more confused
than ever.
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MR. KATSUDA: ... (chuckled) ... Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: As the Budget stands right now, and we have a clean copy of the work
we've done so far. It's sitting right on my desk right now. I'm looking at a line item that says
"grant for deleting Hale Mahaolu and inserting housing and homeownership counseling
program in the amount of $100,000". When the Director testified, she mentioned that she felt
that it was necessary to keep this in, and that she wanted to change the thrust of the program
from homeownership counseling to more of financial literacy and budgeting. Are you
interested in this?
MR. KATSUDA: Actually, the program that we have is a rather comprehensive program. It covers
pre-purchasing counseling, homebuyer education, delinquency, post-purchase counseling,
mortgage counseling, fair-housing counseling, predatory lending, reverse mortgages, and other
related issues. So we have done a comprehensive program for about 18 years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And you have staff aboard who'll do this work?
MR. KATSUDA: Yes, we do. We've had it for 18 years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: If you do not receive continued funding--because the funding that you
are waiting for is already being expended, because nonprofits do that.
MR. KATSUDA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We operate on blind faith that the contract and the money is corning
eventually.
MR. KATSUDA: Yes. Our conversations with the Housing Division was that this contract is
forthcoming, so we went ahead and implemented the program. I have to say that, you know,
we didn't go full guns. It is a $100,000 appropriation.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So my point is this. If you do not receive additional funding beyond
July ofthis year (for the new year) then your staff will be unemployed, essentially?
MR. KATSUDA: Essentially. But the appropriation for the '06-'07 ($100,000) because it has been so
late in executing a contract, the Housing Division is recommending an 18-month contract,
ending in June 30, 2008. So what they wanted to do was extend the monies appropriated for
'06-'07 through the end of June 30, 2008.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And is that possible with your expenses?
MR. KATSUDA: Yes.

- 49-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No increase in money, just an extension of time?
MR. KATSUDA: Correct. Right. It would be nice to receive some monies . . ,. (chuckled) ... We
haven't received any.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
MR. KATSUDA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, I think what I'm trying to determine here is the need for this
$100,000 and the impact that it would have on an existing program with an existing staff that
appear to have the capacity and the track record to do this work.
MR. KATSUDA: Correct. Because the '06-'07 money has not been expended yet, that ... if it's
carried to June 30, 2008, it would be adequate for this housing counseling (reverse mortgage,
homebuyers' education) program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. You've answered my questions. I think I'm clear now.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. KATSUDA: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Mr. Katsuda? Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Mr. Katsuda.
MR. KATSUDA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony. So are you aware where the
contract--that hasn't been executed--where it is at this point?
MR. KATSUDA: Per the Housing Division, that proposed contract has been sent up to the Director's
office on March 22, 2007.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So currently, as you understand it, it's at the Director's
office?
MR. KATSUDA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it just needs to receive final processing and execution?
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MR. KATSUDA: We're hoping. We haven't heard from the Director's office, so we're not sure if
there is a hang-up, or why there's a hang-up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Katsuda. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Katsuda? Seeing none.
Roy, thank you very much for being here this morning.
MR. KATSUDA: Thank you .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, the Chair would like to ask if anyone in the gallery
would like to provide public testimony at this time? Seeing none. Members, the Chair would
like to close public testimony without any objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, this morning, we do have with us the Director of
Parks and Recreation, Tamara Horcajo. There were a few questions regarding the Committee
review in regards to the Department. At this time, the Chair would like to call on the Director
of Parks and Recreation along with your staff person. Director, before we move forward, do
you have any comments that you want to share?
MS. HORCAJO: Good afternoon--oh! Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the
County Council. I'm here to answer questions on behalf of the Parks Department, and I have
with me Roxanne Teshima, who is in charge of our grants and land lease agreements.
Hopefully, we'll be able to answer any questions that you folks may have of us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if you can, tum to Page 16 of 50 on the revised
Exhibit 1 that was handed out this morning. It's 16 of 50 and this involved the deletion of three
pool managers. Members, I'll start off with Mr. Victorino. Mr. Victorino, question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We made this decision to ... or where did this come from? I
forgot where. I've done this so much, I forgot where this came from. The Chair made this
rec ... , oh. Okay, Chair. Sorry, Chair. I forgot where this came from. That ... to delete three
pool managers and a salary adjustment of$2,163. I guess the question some of us had is what
impact will that have as far as our managing of our pools and our safety of our users of the
pools?
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MS. HORCAJO: The initiation of pool managers in our Aquatics Division was to provide additional
staffing, which would keep our pools open more. Rather than to provide the staffing at the
lower entry-level, we would like to initiate the pool manager position for our five main
complex areas. In order of priority, we'd be looking at the Kihei Pool because of its location
and size; West Maui area; Central Maui would be a floater because we have a number of pools
in this area; and then, of course, Upcountry; and Molokai. These positions would add to our
career ladder for our pool. Water safety officers, who we are now losing to the beaches
because of the salary range that the lifeguards have at the pools are quite a bit less than the
beaches. By implementing the pool manager program, it would give them a career ladder. We
feel we wouldn't lose them as quickly and we would keep them. So if the Council is
considering cutting pool managers but keeping some of our pool managers so that we can
implement the program and at least begin the process, we would hope that you wouldn't
identify ... that you'd leave the identification of which pool managers to cut to us; but of
course, the plan of having five was important for us as well. So if not this year, next year; but
we would like to very much look at implementing that-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So essentially ...
MS. HORCAJO: --career ladder.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So essentially, what you're doing is ... actually, now, I count, I
counted three variables. One is to have (in each section of the complexes) someone who is
kinda overseeing what's happening, either a floater or someone who's assigned to that
particular pool complex. Two, they would be kind of like the manager of overseeing; and if
somebody calls in sick or you're short staffed, they would be readily available to assist them in
that area also.
MS. HORCAJO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then three it's really a career builder so that people instead
of, not only leaving the department to go to ocean safety but, you know, maybe others to be
attracted in there, who may be coming out of ocean safety and now looking for another
opportunity, because physically, they can't, maybe can't keep up, because we all get a little
older and the bodies do slow down. So it's a methodology of really killing three birds with one
stone in other words.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you very much for the reminders. Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Horcajo.
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MS. HORCAJO: It will keep our pools open during lunch as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Oh, that's good. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANlLLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman. Director, I think I need a little assistance in trying to
understand the difference between the pool manager and whether or not there is a supervising
lifeguard, you know, on duty. Are there supervising lifeguards?
MS. HORCAJO: Right now we have a senior pool guard, and I believe it's about 60 cents an hour
more to be a senior pool guard than a regular pool guard. So there's not a lot of incentive there
in terms of what they have to deal with in terms of scheduling, management, paperwork,
equipment operations. So we've had difficulty with that position because it is not at a level that
these employees often strive for because of the management duties that aren't reflected in the
pay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So the pool manager will also serve as a lifeguard as well?
MS. HORCAJO: That is correct. They would be certified lifeguards.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And when they are serving as lifeguards, is there a differentiation in
pay because they're using a lesser duty?
MS. HORCAJO: The pool managers would be quite a bit higher in pay. They ... uh ... they're
classified at an SR-18 level versus an SR-13 level; and so they would be responsible for also
the upkeep and maintenance program for the filter and the heaters and the other kind of
paperwork requisitions, which are now all done--believe it or not--at the main office. So this
will really help keep the pools, we feel that it will keep the pools up and running, more
responsible ... urn ... and eventually, keep them more available and open to the community.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Director, I'm gonna be real upfront and tell you that I ... why
I am one who will support the deletion of these positions, and my justification for the deletion
of these positions are several ... several, yeah. One, I do not think pool managers will help
your Department alleviate the consistent pool closures that have occurred. I believe the
Director and the rest of the Department need to address the more serious problems first, the
serious problems of how to maintain; how to recruit; and how to keep the bodies. The
Department needs to come up with a structure to address the compensation of our lifeguards.
The whole issue with lifeguards at this point be it pool and beach guards are having problems at
this point. I don't see pool managers as the resolve in addressing these things. I think we need
to take a step back and start with the very basics of what is it the Department wants in being
able to attract, maintain, and keep guards because the pool guard is not as attractive as the
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beach guard. The interest in the two is the beach, so the difficulty in keeping pools open will
continuously be a problem for the Department unless their basic issues are addressed. So you
know, just letting you know at this point, I have a difficulty in supporting pool managers at this
time. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. HORCAJO: May I quickly respond? Councilmember Mateo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. HORCAJO: That this is ... the addition of the pool manager is one of the cogs in the wheel that
we feel will indeed keep our pools open; and we feel that this is a piece in the resolution of that
problem. Molokai is an area where we do need the assistance in keeping those things running,
like the maintenance and the filters. I believe that this pool guard additional position would
greatly assist in the, the bigger piece because it is a higher SR level than the beach guard; and
feel that some of our lifeguards will want to stay with the pools and not move to the beach
because of this position. So thank you and we too are looking at it and feel that this addition is
actually a big piece of our plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Director? How many lifeguard supervisors? Does every
pool have a lead supervisor or a lead lifeguard?
MS. HORCAJO: That ... that senior pool guard position?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I don't know what it's called.
MS. HORCAJO: It ... I believe that not every pool has a senior pool guard.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So if every pool had a senior lifeguard--or if that's what it's
called--then there should be opportunity for a position expansion just with those increase in the
title and the SR rating, providing more pay allowances for them. If it could be considered
because I believe the Department has the ability to be creative enough to look at mobility of
guards without having to create another layer of management positions.
MS. HORCAJO: Yeah. We feel that this increase in pay and SR level would greatly enhance our pool
program.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Jolmson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Tamara, if I understand what you're saying, it's basically, the
reason that you don't have the senior lifeguards and the reason that you don't have the numbers
that you need in order to keep the pools functioning is because there is no potential for upward
mobility. There's a basic cap on the personnel because there's no where that they can go. So is
... (chuckled) ... am I reading this correctly?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so the whole issue is retention. Therefore, if you create ...
because currently, you can't do it within the positions that are currently described. You can't
artificially--because of union contracts or other things--create these, I guess, SR levels or
whatever from within the existing positions. But if you allow the person to learn additional
tasks, multi-task, perfonn different functions; and particularly when you have illnesses or
people that go on vacation at other pools, these people would be able to be mobile and then fill
in those positions so that the pools would be kept open. Is that correct?
MS. HORCAJO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I respectfully, you know, don't agree with my fellow
Councilmember because I think precisely the reason that you're creating these positions is to
allow for stability and to prevent outflow of all your personnel going to a beach job, which
would be at a higher level of pay. And so you know, I do support these positions. If you
were--you know, let's say because I know this is something that some of the Members may feel
it's brand new. If we were to revisit this and look at the pool managers that you've put in, what
do you believe the absolute minimum of pool managers would be in order to see whether or not
this particular program will work?
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you for asking. We would like ... urn ... if we could start out with, well.
The Kihei Pool is required. If we could look at starting out with three, we do need five-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. HORCAJO: --to look at all of our districts and then it would create that floater that you were
talking about ... so that if there was a need within the district. As you know, we have five
distinct districts. So in looking at ... if you'd like to look at a pilot and we could start say with
three programs, and then for the next year, if it was working really well, and we could justify
perhaps a twelve-month funding, or you know request, if we want to keep that ball rolling, that
would be a great assistance with our project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So if we start out with three so that would mean our
delete--you originally requested five.
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MS. HORCAJO: We did ... and in talking with my Aquatks Division, they are looking at the West,
the South, and the Central as initial phases. Although, from my perspective, I always think of
Molokai because it's a long arm away and we do need the support there as well. And of course,
Upcountry is its own problem. So you know, we'd have to look at where we are going to
implement the three of the five positions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So the two areas that you had intended, you know, to
include with the five of those, it would be Molokai and also Upcountry that would not be
included in this initial pilot program?
MS. HORCAJO: Ifwe received three-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MS. HORCAJO: --that would be where we would have to start based on the needs of the pool
facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Tamara.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department at this time in
regards to the pool managers? Seeing none. Thank you very much. I got a question in regards
to do you have--I saw your table of organization.
MS. HORCAJO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do you have a table of organization for the aquatics area?
MS. HORCAJO: Yes, I do. It was in the handout given on, when we presented our ABC accounts.
It's right here. I can make it available again.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No; we have that.
MS. HORCAJO: It's on Page 10 ofthe handout that was provided during our presentation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: My question is that every time we have--it's not only your Department by
the way. There's other departments that create positions that's for upward mobility. Is there
some kind of a--and I know your situation in regards to pools being closed. Is there another
mechanism such then ... of scheduling, or rescheduling, or changing schedules, so that you
meet your minimum requirements in regards to coverage of each pool? My concern is that, you
know, as we move forward, it seems like we are empire-building. That's what I see ... because
of upward mobility. And most departments are ereating positions so that, number one, to retain,
which is very important; but again, you know, we keep on growing (the County government)
and we need to be conscious of how to utilize, you know, our people as efficiently as can be.
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So I have a hard time in regards to having five pool managers. In, you know, the reduction of
three, meaning that you do have ... pool managers that can also, that can be roving managers
for all of the different areas where we do have pools. That's my comment to you, Tamara, this
morning.
MS. HORCAJO: Chairman. Originally, when the pools were first built and initiated, we never had
staffing that was adequate to meet our USLA standard. We're just trying to catch up. So in
terms of empire-building. If we don't build the facility, then we don't need more lifeguards;
but if we have the facility, we need to staff them safely because the only way we can
appropriately keep our pools open is with the adequate staff. If we don't have the staff, we
need to close the pool, so that's ... that's where we are. Even with all staff onboard, we need
seven guards just in order to adequately staff our existing facilities, so that's our problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And how much, how many vacancies do you have right now in the lifeguard
area?
MS. HORCAJO: I believe that we currently have only two vacancies. We have just received a new
list, which is very good, and the interviews have been conducted in the hiring procedure; so
three of the vacancies that may be shown on your old report will be filled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So all of the vacancies that were reported on this sheet that we provided
every department, only two vacancies that you have presently?
MS. HORCAJO: Correct. And they are part-time positions because the applicants that we have
wanted full-time employment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So all of the vacancies that were noted on the DPS report is all filled?
MS. HORCAJO: The full time ... (end a/tape, start 3B at 12:01 p.rn.) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And how many is that?
MS. HORCAJO: We have three in process.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Johnson followed by
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Tamara. Part of ... I guess what I'm hearing is that it's a
safety issue, number one; but also it's that you are losing people to other employment. It may
not even necessarily be, you know, County employment. But that in order to be competitive, in
order to be fully staffed and keep the pools open, you need to have some means of retaining
your employees that's competitive within your own division even. Is that accurate?
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MS. HORCAJO: That's correct. We are a great training ground and we get the staff up and running
and then, you know, like you say, they move on. So it's always a domino effect in terms of our
part-timers would move to our full time and by providing this other level, we're hoping that we
keep them with us; and we feel that is a piece.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And at the pay level that they're making, let's say ... uh ... what
does the SR-18, what does that equate to?
MS. HORCAJO: I ... uh ... I am looking around because I don't know that breakdown right now,
exactly. It's .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I got that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: SR-18, you're gonna have to do a little figuring 'cause we only
have the eight ... SR-18 pool manager expansion is $24,032, but that is only eight months.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you gotta extrapolate that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So somewhere around $36,000 then. Okay. Now, your aquatics
people or the people that work on the beaches, they are also SR-18 or ... ?
MS. HORCAJO: SR-17.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: SR-17. So that would be at least--this would be one step above?
MS. HORCAJO: That'scorrect.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now, with your ... do you have premium pay issues also,
when people don't show up and others have to do overtime at our pools? Is that something that
has occurred? Or is that not a problem as far as you know?
MS. HORCAJO: Our premium pay issues deal with a seven-day workweek and needing to be open on
holidays as well. So we are always covering holidays and of course weekends, too; so they
work a seven-day workweek.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: We stagger them.
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COUNCll.MEMBER JOHNSON: And so a lot of your people who ... let's say would otherwise have
a day off or have some time (when you're not fully staffed) they would also be eating up
additional premium pay. Is that correct?
MS. HORCAJO: If they're asked to come back to work?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. HORCAJO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's a balancing act. And I hate to say this, but it seems
to me, like you're threading water. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. You are certainly challenged. I guess we all
are, and we appreciate your efforts in trying to find a way to appeal to more people in this
career. You know, I'm just reviewing this. We've got (and I'm just talking current) we've got
42 pool guards of which 4 of them are senior pool guards. There doesn't seem to be--welliet
me just finish this. Then in ocean safety (which is the beach lifeguards) we have 44 positions
and you're asking for 6 additional, making it 50 positions. When I look at this, Ms. Horcajo,
and I look at the way the ocean safety officer positions are prescribed, you have the ability to
move ocean safety officers up the ladder from Ocean Safety Officer I all the way up to Ocean
Safety Officer IV, and that salary range goes from $20,000--1 hope this is right--starting salary.
Actually, you don't have any current Ocean Safety Officer I's on the payroll right now. They're
all II's and your expansion positions are all for Ocean Safety Officer I's starting at $20,000.
So, somebody work the math on that for me? Jo Anne, what would that be for ... uh ... that's
eight months, so?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: $20,000 for eight months.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah. So that's gonna be ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Add another ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Another? ... (chuckled) ... What, $29,000?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What I'm trying to draw is a correlation here between the two
different positions. Pool guards start out at $29,000 and their career ladder only offers them
three senior pool guard positions and so with 38 pool guards, they're all competing to get those
three positions as a career step. That takes them up to the highest paid ... and of course, we
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recognize the longer you're there, the higher your step increases become. But the range,
Members, for ocean safety officers goes from $29,000 to $49,900 (almost $50,000) whereas
pool guards--and that's four different steps. Whereas with pool guards, they're all Pool Guard I
starting at $29,000, and then for them to get in besides just ... uh ... what do you call?
MS. HORCAJO: Senior?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, thank you. A seniority increase, their only option to get to
a higher paying position is to get one of those three senior pool guard positions; and that makes
it highly unlikely that most of them or even half of them will ever get there. And that range for
pool guards goes up to $44,000. So I can see why the ocean safety officer positions are more
attractive-MS. HORCAJO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --because there are more career steps. There are more options
for them to move up the ladder quicker. So I'm wondering if you folks have considered putting
more steps in the pool lifeguard positions, instead of having all of them Pool Lifeguard I and
then three of them senior pool guards. If that is an option that you've considered?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director?
MS. HORCAJO: The Chief of Aquatics isn't here right now but I, as I understand it, this pool
manager position is why we're placing that ... uh ... why we're looking at implementing that
in our program. The pool guard, if you notice, is an SR-ll and the senior pool guard is only an
SR-13. There isn't ... they don't have the same kinds of steps as the OSO has with the
classification system with civil service. So the pool manager is when ... uh ... is another way
to provide that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. But you can only have so many pool managers, right?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct. But if we look at one for each district right now, it may be beneficial
to look at one for each pool later down the line.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're constrained by the civil service positions that are
currently described?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct. We're ... this Pool Manager I is already one that's being used
Statewide and we are jumping on that one, rather than creating a whole other level-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Horcajo.
MS. HORCAJO: --that isn't yet created.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: I appreciate it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Horcajo? In regards to your pool guards, I note that there
are several steps over here in SR; and I seen one that is an SR-IlKTD?
MS. HORCAJO: Yeah. (NOTE: She s whispering.) I wonder what that is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It seems like, you know, steps can be added .. , through probably
negotiations? And that particular position is approximately $39,753, so I'm assuming that
that's the top-rated pool guard that you have in the Department.
MS. HORCAJO: That's what it looks like.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And is there ... uh ... what is the steps to get to there for existing pool
guards that are on the lower end of the scale?
MS. HORCAJO: Well the steps are based on the HGEA contract. It could be that this KTD was a way
to have one of our officers--I'm taking a stab at this here--from ocean safety, who was currently
unable to fulfill the ocean safety requirements, who took a step back to the pool in order to
... uh ... because he could meet those requirements. So that may be what this indicates, and I
will check. If I'm incorrect, I will get back with you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. As far as the vacancies in the pool guard area that you have
continuous recruitment, couldn't you redirect those ... or make them full-time positions, so
that you know you can have some stability in the Department? Right now, you know, you're
increasing the hours from 15 hours to 20 hours; but have you ever taken a look at all six
halftime positions becoming full-time positions to support your existing lifeguards?
MS. HORCAJO: We believe that by changing the halftime positions, which will work weekends and
holidays for us, are individuals with other jobs that are using this halftime position to augment
income from other jobs. We know, through our interview procedure, that the halftime
position--because of the benefits that the County gives (the medical, sick, and vacation
leave)--we will have better, more applications and more people wanting that job than the
part-time program or current position that does not offer those benefits.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. My question is that if you were making, if you were to make it
full-time positions because we're gonna give medical and benefits to these halftime positions
presently, wouldn't that provide you a more stable workforce?
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MS. HORCAJO: We could look at that, making the halftime or the part-time full time; but right now,
having the halftime, that would allow eight hours during Saturday, eight hours during Sunday,
and then four hours one other day of the week, and in that ... and that way, the half timers
would fulfill those Holiday pay as well. It actually does work out good for scheduling so that
our full time guards really like the Monday through Friday, and they like the half timers
working weekends. If everyone works seven ... uh ... five ... full time, we'd have to go on a
seven-day schedule and the guards currently on a Monday through Friday schedule may have to
go to weekend work if we don't have half timers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you. Members, I know
the time. It's 12:15 and the Chair would like to take our lunch break and we'll return back here
at 1 :40. This meeting is--prior to going into recess, if the Department can come back after
lunch ... at about 1:40. Members, the meeting is now in recess. . .. (gavel) ...

RECESS:

12:15 p.rn.

RECONVENE:

1:48 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) ... Thank you, Members. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now back in session. Members, when we left off, we were with the Parks
Department. On Page 16, we have another item that's open. On the Planning and
Development Program, Item No. I, possibly add emergency shelter West Maui.
COUNClLMEMBER VICTORINO: '" (inaudible) ... there's a change.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we get a page reference, Chair?
COUNClLMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 16 of 50.
COUNClLMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) ... no.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is just multi, you know, get three colors on top. Okay? So
you no have to get three things. . .. (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Everybody got that?
COUNClLMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I get this ... (inaudible) . .. Bumbye, I bring back for you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sixteen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No worry ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIRPONTANILLA: 16 of 50.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: 14-1O?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 14-15, Item No.1, revisit. You know that dark area that you see?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, yeah. Here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page again, Chair? I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Chair, could we ... ?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: 16 of 50.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we pass that for now?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, 60.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sixteen.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Until ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Until Member Johnson comes because this is her?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. We'll skip that for now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what are we on?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: 16 of 50.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (inaudible) ...
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) ... we're still on that?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We don't have a 16, so it's gotta be 15.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Huh? 16 of 50.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Oh, Page 16.... (chuckled) ... Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: I don't feel so bad. . .. (chuckled) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair is looking through his master sheet here to see if there is another area
for Parks? Workline is in Parks?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (inaudible) ...
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Page 15.
MR. TAGUCHI: The bottom of Page 15. It had been voted on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Last night, we voted on ... and the Chair's recommendation of
$130,000 will remain.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, point of c1arific ... , information. Sorry, wrong word.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But we are not agreeing to the Department of Public Safety's request. Is
that correct, Chairman? We are not adding positions to take care their job. Right? I'm getting
kinda upset with them asking us to add our positions to our payroll when this money is to assist
their program.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is to assist the State of Hawaii program?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They want us to ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the workline.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I think the request from those that don't understand that it's their
program. They're asking us to create and fund a position to expend our money for their
purposes, and it's getting real close where I'm getting very irked about that attitude toward the
County. We're already providing the equipment. We pay for the truck. What else do they
want?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, Chairman. One question since we have the Director and Ms. Johnson
is not here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How much of the workline does Parks really utilize? 50 percent of the
total workline availability? 80 percent of the workline availability? How much does Parks
utilize the program?
MS. HORCAJO: I'm just checking with Roxanne here. Of the lines that are available with MCCC,
our Department does do all of the (100 percent) of the scheduling for these worklines. We do
schedule for nonprofit groups when requested.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So how much does the workline actually assist Parks on Parks' programs
or needs?
MS. HORCAJO: I'm gonua take a shot at it here. I would say about 70 percent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is on Parks and Recreation?
MS. HORCAJO: Is on Park.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does Public Works also request to either assist with maybe, you know, as
part of our drainage maintenance; assisting with clearing culverts; drainageways prior to, you
know, the rains and the floods? Have you allocated time from this program to also maybe
assist Public Works Highways?
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MS. HORCAJO: This workline crew does clear the major culverts for Parks in Parks' property. One
of the biggest ones is the Upcountry Eddie Tam culvert that runs our continual property and
they are assisting us there, as well as other drainage areas in Parks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: By the Lahaina Aquatic Center, you know, where we have that drainage
catchment basin-MS. HORCAJO: Right. Retention.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --on the side, that retention?
MS. HORCAJO: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do they provide you some services in those areas?
MS. HORCAJO: Yes, they do. And they help us put in our post and rail as well.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Okay. Chainnan. I don't have a problem if we're utilizing it but
I will not support us taking care oftheir operational administrative requirements.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Director. The funding for the workline, what
does it go towards?
MS. HORCAJO: The funding for the workline goes towards the supplies needed for the specific tasks
that we do assign to them, for the supplies and equipment that are needed to do the job.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, this goes to the purchase of weed-eaters and some weed-eater
lines and is that what you're talking about? I mean it doesn't go towards purchasing the posts
and rails, does it?
MS. HORCAJO: I'm gonna have Roxanne address this question specifically because she's worked
with that program.
MS. TESHIMA: Our grant currently pays for the food (their lunches during the day) and inmate
compensation, which they make 50 cents an hour, gas, supplies (like weed-eaters, tools).
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it does go the equipment (like weed-eaters and tools)?
MS. TESHIMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And you ... and out of this comes their compensation?
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MS. TESHIMA: Out of the grant funds, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the County pays their ...
MS. TESHIMA: I mean just the inmate compensation now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. They make very little. Well I know when we used them in
Public Works, we supplied their lunches and drinks. So must be the Parks were keeping the
money then. . .. (chuckled) . .. Because every time we used them, we provided their lunches
and their drinks.
MS. TESHIMA: Well what we've been doing is we're ... it's a grant. So what they do is they request
to us and they show us ... um ... we reimburse them for their expenses related to program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Yeah, I think the workline really helps a lot of
organizations. I know they helped us in Public Works Highways, mostly in their line that did
the trimming for flood controls with us and along roadways; but they also had a construction
workline that did projects for us. So it's a wonderful, I think, a worthy program and I just was
wondering what the funding went towards. Thank you. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I just want to add my support for spending money on the
workline. I have a lot of experience with the benefits received by the larger community
because of their help to the nonprofit sector. And you know, they provide necessary manpower
that most little organizations don't have access to. Also, I think there's a benefit to the
participants in the workline. You know, they develop a sense of pride, a sense of doing some
good in the community. They learn skills by, you know, participating in projects. They learn
how to use tools. They learn how to get things done. And those are transferable skills that
often leads to apprenticeship in the vocations. So I am a very big supporter and I wish that we
could increase it because we still have many inmates that sit at MCCC and are not productive.
They could be adding to the community a lot of value, rather than us paying--I forget--some
ridiculous number like $40,000 a year to house an inmate at MCCC, who sits there watching
TV and lifting barbells. That is not productive. So I think the workline is a very good expense
for our community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And I will also support this and ... and
like Councilrnember Baisa, I'd like to really put more in there but we'll have to go find some
money; but what I wanted to say is, not only do they work and develop skills in the area of both
construction and other areas, they really have a sense of giving back, and I'll give you the
example in point. Every year, the Maui County Fair has a special fair. The special fair, without
the imnates to help load and unload all of these special needs citizens, it would be a task that
could not be performed; and they do it willingly. I have seen grown men cry because they see
people that are more or less fortunate than they are. In fact, I had a couple of times, couple
experiences, where we actually sat down and talked. And one of them told me, then he says
"you know, Mr. Victorino, I did wrong. I'm here because I did wrong. They did no wrong, and
they're in that chair because they have no choice", and he started to cry. Then I realized the
benefit of what this does, not only to them but the families that are involved in it, the patients
that are involved in this. So yes, I will support anything that the workline does for this
community because it has a very big residual. Grant you, I understand what Chair Hokama is
saying as far as taking the State's responsibilities, taking things and making us pay for State
responsibilities; but in the overall scheme of things--and no offense to Chair Hokama--I really
believe that it has such a big benefit for this entire community that the money is being well
spent, like a lot ofthe other programs that we help. So thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before Member Hokama can go on, it's not the workline that we
have a problem with. It is the staffing, who-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --administer the workline program. So at this time, the Chair would like to
ask ifthe Parks has any problems in-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No more enough staff.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --administering this program with your present staff?
MS. TESHIMA: Okay. Can I just address that? Currently, at the MCCC facility, they have four
accounting positions, of which two is vacant, and it has been vacant for some time. So they are
really backlogged and even their ACOs (their correction officers) they have 50-plus vacancies,
so I think the reason why they are asking us for that is this is a reimbursable grant. So they are
expending like $100,OOO-plus of their funds prior to getting reimbursed. So we usually
reimburse them at the end of the fiscal year, you know, versus giving them upfront monies; and
that's a problem, you know, for anybody--I would think--because they're expending
$100,OOO-plus for the program that we also benefit from. So they just said that it's a problem
for them right now as far as the accounting area and we thought that, you know, if ... that's
why they wrote to you asking for help in that area; and they would be willing to reduce their
grant to fulfill the financial obligations for that position.

- 68-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2007

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again, the State is requiring us guys to-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I could understand that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --supervise that program. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Chairman. They got the money. We've just been told they got the
vacancies. They get money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Tell them "do their job". I would like to ... while Ms. Johnson's back, but
you know, we got things to do, Chairman, and I really want to get on in doing some
adjustments right now, which is more technical than financial.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Members, on Page 18 of 50, Department of Police. Last night, we
made a decision to shift from CIP to the Admin. program of the Department of Police, the
consultant funds for the emergency radio communication system. It would be more
appropriate, Members, to place that on Page 19 under Technical and Support Services Program.
So this is. no changing in the numbers. It is just reassigning to the correct program and division
of the Department of Police, the consultant request for the emergency radio communication
system. So Mr. Chairman, ifthere's no objections by the Committee, I would ask that we make
this adjustment please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Any objections to the move-COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --from one area to _ _ _ _ tonight. Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: What's the area again, moving it to?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: From Administration to Technical and Support Services Program, which is
MPD 17-29.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: MPD 17-29.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's $500,000, yeah?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We're just shifting from one division to the other program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama, before you go on, I just want to close out the Parks Department
at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to the workline? The
Chair had recommended $100,000 for the workline. Any objections to the Chair's
recommendation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANlLLA: Thank you. Let's move on. Let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (end a/tape, start 4A at 2:05 p.rn.) . .. $130,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. $130,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I was gonna give you the $20,000... , (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: You mean the 30? ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's gone.... (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll take it. ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The other areas, Page 5. This is in regards to--I'm sorry--Page 5 is
the golf fund and we'll take it up on rates and fees.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You were at 16, PR 14-15.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. On Page 16, Members, Chair's recommendation is to delete 3 pool
managers. Any objections to the Chair's recommendation? Member Anderson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Johnson!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Johnson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I only just wanted two of them and I wanted to reserve one so that
at least we could have the implementation of the pilot program to see if it's gonna work to
retain employees.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. It's from five to two, so you're gonna have two.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know. And when I asked Ms. Horcajo how their pilot program
was gonna work because we have three major pools that continuously have the problem, one of
those pools is going to be left out. So if we include only two, may I ask her which one they
would leave out?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Fine, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ms. Horcajo, which pool would you leave out if we only provide
two?
MS. HORCAJO: It would have to be Central. We would look at--as I said earlier--our priority would
be Kihei, West, Central, Molokai and Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Horcajo, one question. Can that pool manager be a roving manager,
meaning Kihei (South Maui) as well as Central Maui because the distance is not that great?
MS. HORCAJO: Not according to the class specifications. It would be for a specific district area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Only a specific district?
MS. HORCAJO: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, I'll ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: With that being the case, if she's willing to do it for Lahaina and
the--is it Kihei? Then that's fine. I just would prefer to do it for the three because I think
Central's really important and that's where we have a lot of the closures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, I would prefer three.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. You know, this is something that we're gonna have
to do sooner or later. Whether we do it this year, next year, or the following year, we know we
have problems that need to be addressed; and since there's no steps like they have in ocean
safety, this is the only option that the Director has. I would request, you know, we're going
through and fine-tuning cuts right now, and we haven't even determined what our final revenue
figure is yet. We haven't addressed real property. We haven't addressed rates yet; and so rather
than make a final decision on something like this, you know, we may end up with money to
take care of it once we do the revenues. So you know, I don't know why we're spending a lot
of time cutting and slashing the manini when we haven't addressed our revenues yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson, we'll get to the revenue share as soon as we complete
this.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if, then I would request that. Should there be an increase in
revenue when we're done, that this would be reinstated.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can come back to that. Ms. Horcajo, in regards to your six ...
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Five.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Five.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh! Five pool guards.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's the possi ... , well not a possibility. But it's for your consideration, to
reclassify one of those positions to be a pool manager? Those are expansion halftime positions.
MS. HORCAJO: I'm sorry. I don't quite understand the question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Reclassif'y one of your halftime expansion positions to a full-time pool
manager position.
MS. HORCAJO: I would have to look at that with my aquatics people to see if we have enough
coverage for the weekend because I know there is a concern about keeping our half-timers so
that we have coverage on the weekends.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we will revisit.
Development area, the shelter West Maui.

Members,

III

regards to the Planning and

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I had requested to--and this would be underneath
the professional services. I was requesting $100,000 because previously in the Budget, we had
$75,000 for the analysis as far as the retrofitting for the Lahaina Civic Center. Because that is
under the control of the Parks Department, I wanted--because Mr. Inuma is not an engineer--I
wanted the money reallocated to do a site evaluation, including whatever Parks spaces we have
over there and any other spaces. So I put $100,000 in, or requesting it to be able to provide
some type of analysis. It would be a request for proposal, and it would be for professional
services, so that somebody who has the skills would be doing it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In what area are you looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well I was putting it underneath Planning and Development
Program because that was where staff had mentioned under their professional services. That's
just for my notes. . .. (pause) . .. If it's better under Administration ... (chuckled) ...
professional services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member ...
MS. HORCAJO: Chair, can I?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Horcajo.
MS. HORCAJO: Can I ask a question here for clarification?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. HORCAJO: And perhaps I can give you some information from the Department as welL There
was a design for a retrofit for the Lahaina Civic Center. Does this apply to that specific?
Because we did have an opportunity to meet with the Mayor and Administration regarding
going forward with that consultant in order to see what kind of recommendations were made,
and we will be moving forward on that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. So you will be moving forward on the $75,000 that was
in this year's Budget?
MS. HORCAJO: That is correct. And in order to get an idea of what the recommendations are-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: --and then we can look at where the money can be appropriately spent, and we'll be
back with you at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And if that's the case, Mr. Chair, because it was very clear
that Mr. Inuma did not recommend that site; but if the Administration feels differently and they
have the money in this year's Budget with the $75,000 and they can encumber it then that's
fme.
CHAIR PONTAt"lILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. Then I drop my request.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Ms. Horcajo
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No objections, cross it out. Okay, on Page 25 of 50. This is in regards to
ConstructionlMaintenance Baseyard at Iron Maehara Baseball Stadium. Mr. Hokama, your
language?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if your staff can assist me with passing out. I have some
recommendations for the language for the CIP Coordinator, the downhill bicycle tour
assessment, and the Parks baseyard.... (pause) ... Chairman, if! may, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, I had told you I was gonna try and work it through the project
description. However, we do not adopt the project description and, therefore, I am
recommending that we consider language in the Budget Ordinance through a proviso that for
this specific project, it would read "provided that the Department of Parks and Recreation shall
submit periodic reports to the Council starting on February 1st". And this is a date that is very
flexible, Members, "and continuing every three months thereafter until the final report is issued
upon completion of the project; and provided further that each report shall provide a description
of each previous expenditure for this project in reasonable detail in an assessment of the
department's ability to build capital improvements without general contractors."
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, any questions, comments in regards to
the proposed proviso for this item? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Does the Parks Department understand ... 'cause I don't know if
Ms. Horcajo was here when we were speaking about this being the pilot of how we could
actually use this example of taking the County to the next level in doing in-house or doing
construction projects and developing this as a pilot to illustrate if we can actually have a
construction division, using this as the example. Are you aware of that, Ms. Horcajo?
MS. HORCAJO: I'm not fully aware of that but our Department would have no problem in working
with you on some kind of report form or information that you're expecting of us and we would
work towards that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate that because I think that Chair Hokama has
come up with an innovative way to actually use what might have otherwise not been a very
good example and turn it into something that we can actually learn from; and so I'm glad to
know that you would be willing to do that because if this is successful, then perhaps it may
become a model for our construction division. Thank you, Ms. Horcajo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama, any more comments in regards to that item?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just so that the Director, when she shares the information with her
Department. The assessment would be, I think the points that we would be interested in is: the
time savings in actually getting to construction; the savings of the actual construction period;
and potential savings of the total project amount itself. I am basing this, Mr. Chairman, that the
Department will be working with the Finance Department to ensure that whatever we need to
foHow as well as regarding State procurement requirements or other procedural permits, you
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know, that will all be taken care of; but I still believe that this project, again, the end result is
that it will be something that will be positive for the County. We'll be able to learn and make
some decisions about the ability of us moving forward; saving taxpayers' dollars; providing the
improvement faster than later or not at all; and the ability to stretch the County's resources to
do more than what we currently are capable of. So that is what I am hoping to get out of this
project, Director, especially if there's times of savings for Molokai and Lanai islands without
the major component of the private contracts for mobilization. As well as, it might be part of
your career ladder tutoring program of how to have your workforce develop skills and be able
to move up into the journeyman positions as well as supervisory positions. That is what I am
envisioning, Chairman and Members. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department, do you have any comments to what was just
explained by Mr. Hokama?
MS. HORCAJO: I think that vision would be of great benefit to the community if we can test it out
and evaluate it as we go.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes, I just wanted to add to that. I think Chairman Hokarna's idea
is very good. I just would ask, how would we be able to compare it if it was done by a private
contractor? Would we be able to say ... have a project; have it estimated for costs by a private
contractor, to their prices; and then when we build it, we see what the comparison is; so we
know if there is a savings in time and cost? I would just ask Chairman Hokama to consider
that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, that's all I have for the Parks Department.
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We have to deal with the Kula tennis courts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's on Page 24, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CIP 25-6. Member Baisa?

Page 24, Members, Kula Tennis Courts, General Fund,
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. As a result of discussion on the floor about the cost of the relative
higher cost of these tennis courts as opposed to the ones that are being built in West Maui, we
started looking at this expenditure in detail and a couple of serious concerns have risen about
the planned site, the current planned site. It's a very complicated story but the bottom line is
because we do not have a fully executed lease or a long-term lease for the current site, other
options have been looked at. However, none of those options have been ... we haven't had
time to really nail anything down. Mr. Dowling has put forward a very attractive proposal that
would result in four tennis courts instead of two; and we would then own the property that the
tennis courts would be built on, rather than leasing and possibly running into trouble with a
lease again. And also this morning, some discussion was made of possibly talking with the
folks who do gate ball and looking at that as a possible site because it's a better site. It's level
and it doesn't have the challenges of the current site. So my recommendation is that we leave
this money alone but that we pursue the current site as well as the two other options and make a
decision as quickly as possible to expedite the Kula folks getting their courts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Comments, Department?
MS. HORCAJO: I would be in agreement with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So Member Baisa, in regards to the Kula tennis courts, the Chair
recommended 1.12 mil--that we leave the 1.12 mil and the proviso, I guess, to add that the
Department consider a site that has been noted to us by Mr. Dowling as well as the possibility
of relocating the gate ball facility.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: The big concern, Chair, is that with the current site, that because we
don't have an executed lease that meets our requirements and also there is some concern that
Member Anderson brought up yesterday in regards to a water agreement and that's a property
that adjoins these tennis courts, and that person is the person who now owns this site. That
water agreement was not approved by the Council. There seems to be many contingent
concerns to the present site.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we'll provide the Department with those alternatives.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTAt"'ITLLA: Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I was just gonna say perhaps Member Baisa could work with
staff and craft a proviso that would address the concerns that have been raised because the
Department--even if they're given the discretion to go forward--number one, it has to be
something that's acceptable to the community; and it has to be something that's in legal
compliance with all of our ordinances. So I mean I would say, those two conditions should at
the very least be listed in the proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman? Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama followed by Member Anderson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe instead of getting the language in the proviso--because it seems it
might need to be very technical and drawn out--one way I would recommend for the
Committee to consider is re-describing the use and just put Planning and Design. Our intention
is also to include the construction; but for the Department to get to the construction, they would
have to come back for a budget amendment to change the language to add "construction" and
that is when they can explain what has transpired in their discussions with the current site or an
alternative site. Then we can make the adjustment on the Budget with the project itself to say
then we now include the construction language for the use of the appropriated funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Agreeable?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's acceptable and very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd also like to add that, you know, it's very discomforting to be
investing big money on land we don't own. And you know, I don't know that any of us know
what the lease agreement is. We do know--only by word of mouth--that the property has
changed hands and so we're dealing with a new owner. I would hope that in reviewing this, we
could find out what it would cost for us to buy this property so that it is in the County's control
in perpetuity, which makes it much easier to invest taxpayer dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I think the option that Mr. Hokama comes with will provide
the Department to look into the possibility of purchasing that land.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So Members, everybody in agreement? Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Scratch it out. Let's see. Any more for the Parks, Members?
None. Thank you, Director. When we go through the rates and fees, if you would be available?
It's gonna be the later part of this afternoon, the rates and fees for the golf course. Okay?
Thank you. Members, we do have the Transportation Department. I would like to call
Mr. Medeiros up front. ... (pause) . .. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros, for being here. Members, if
you can turn to Page 21. Okay, Members. Last night, we had discussion on Item 8 in regards
to grants and disbursements for Public Transit Program - Highway Fnnds and we had
provisod [sic} $480,000 shall be used ... shall be for West Maui transit route proposed by the
Lahaina bypass. Director, if you have any comments?
MR. MEDEIROS: There's really no room in our Budget for $480,000 of additional services. The
services that we have, as I reported to you, are hardly utilized. So the only way that that would
be able to function is if somehow this body were to find additional funds to put into the Budget,
and it did come late. We didn't get the information until just last month and so we, you know,
we couldn't even consider putting, obviously, consider putting it in our Budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama followed by Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Mr. Medeiros, I think, I don't have a problem with raising fees to, from
$1 to $2. I think that's still a great bargain compared to those of us that drive a car, and what
we pay for insurance and gasoline. So if we did that, what would be an estimated increase in
revenues from this program ... as far as in your budget calculations?
MR. MEDEIROS: We're estimating for this year, under the current, at the current, of about $475,000
mrevenue.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: At $l?
MR. MEDEIROS: At $1, yes, with some of the ... some of the services. The Central routes are
currently free.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I, that part I understand. The Wailuku-Kahului segment, I understand
that.
MR. MEDEIROS: For what we charge for now of the whole system, $475,000, so you're looking to
double that.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So if we raise it to $2, it would possibly be ... uh ... conceptually, it
could pay for the expansion that we are provisoing [sic] the funds for at this time? Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: If all things remain the same.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Yes. Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. Don, if we did that, would that impact ridership,
do you believe, in those areas that are currently paying the dollar? And is that only just what's
projected for receipts from West Maui? Or is that your whole system wide?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's the entire system.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: It's hard to predict what's going to happen. Being that this system is as new as it is
and we don't even have a year's experience, you know, I would have hoped that maybe next
year, we'll have this discussion as to fees and rates because we have not hit a plateau yet. So to
fully judge the use of the system and the effectiveness of the system, I think we need to give it
some time and find out where that plateau is; and once we've hit that plateau, then I think we
could have that discussion as to-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The rates.
MR. MEDEIROS: --where the rates should go. And as we mentioned before, you know, do a benefit,
cost benefit analysis of, you know, at this rate, for instance, with the amount of folks using it,
you know, would we have to widen any more highways to four lanes and spend hundreds of
millions of dollars or you know, that sort of thing that we could actually sit down and discuss
that with some stats behind us. Currently, you know, we're just barely nine months into the
project as far as that is concerned.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I appreciate that because what you're trying to do right
now is build ridership and my concern, Mr. Chair, is that exactly what Mr. Medeiros is saying
may be true because if you're providing it free in one area (where you want to increase the
circulation) take the cars off the road. I look at this as avoided costs because truthfully, I have
to say that a couple factors have actually improved the circulation of the traffic in West Maui;
and I believe that the bus transportation has been one of them. So my belief is that if we can
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avoid some of these costs, the $480,000 that we would invest now will buy us a little bit more
time because you 'II have that many more riders that would be utilizing this. I have a place
where I would suggest, you know, some of the monies may come from and it's ... I think I
spoke about it last night converting some of our highway project for West Maui, converting that
to bond, but this is so tied to the quality of the life of the people on this island that have to
commute to work and who live there. So I am inclined to agree with Mr. Medeiros's
recommendation that right now, I'm a little reluctant to turn anybody off because I've seen
even some of the students, right away--as soon as those fees got bumped up--they were really
upset because they have such limited income; and it's the cumulative impact of everything else
they're having to pay. So, I don't know. I'll try and find the money but I never intended for
this to be a proviso to detract fr{)m the program that Mr. Medeiros has, and I made that very
clear. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MEDEIROS: IfI could just?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
MR. MEDEIROS: Kind of along those lines, the system of services that we're funding up until, for
the first three quarters of this year (between the fixed route transportation and the services that
MEO offers) just last month alone, for instance, there was 152 boardings {sic]. So that can
equate to 152 .. .(end of tape, start 4B at 2:37 p.m.) . .. be 152,000. That equates to 152,000
car trips, you know, throughout the County of Maui and so there's something happening here.
There's something very positive happening here, and I think we need to nurture this for a little
bit and then take a look at it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I think it's sort of a dead issue now so I won't
pursue it, but I just would like ... urn ... Mr. Medeiros, ifhe looks this following year into any
kind of rate increases that we look at a way to--I don't know if you can determine ridership
right now, as far as who is riding--but I would hope that we would not increase the fairs to
young people, like anybody 18 and younger, no increase for them. Students shouldn't have to
pay an increase. That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ifwe're gonna increase, you know, the students.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Along that lines, Member Anderson, all-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Huh?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --students under 18 and possibly senior citizens.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Mr. Medeiros, I just want to tell you I support your position. I
remember when we started the Wailuku-Kahului shuttle, and you remember the buses ran
empty for a while ... but it catches on. Maui is funny. And once we catch on and word of
mouth kicks in and gas prices continue to rise the way they have been lately, I think that you're
gonua see this ridership go even higher. I think giving it another year is a really good idea.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MEDEIROS: And what we're hearing now are issues of not enough room on the bus, people
having to wait and that sort, and what we have. Come July 1, we're gonua start with the larger
motor coaches coming in. So we have six ofthose coming in that should be in operation by the
first quarter. We've got another four that will probably be landing about this time next year. So
as this thing is growing, we are poised to address larger loads of people within our system. So
that will further help us so that hopefully by the time we get to this point next year, we'll have
some really great idea of where this system is liitting and the loads that we can handle and
might what ... might go from there. We hear an awful lot and we read an awful lot in the
paper about wanting monorail systems or fixed-route systems but the genesis of those things, it
all has to start with rubber on the road--wheels that can get people from their home to a transit
station and actually embracing transit itself and riding in a bus or whatever type of other
vehicle that we may end up with on this island of ours. I don't know of any place in this nation
that has grown as fast, ridership has grown as fast as this as a County. So I would say to each
one of you, you know, take your right hand, put it on your shoulder, and give it a pat because
had you not funded it, none of this would have happened.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Director. You know in
terms of your fleet maintenance or replacement, with the increased ridership that you're
foreseeing and by not having say a rate increase, what kind of impacts do you think, in terms of
your operational costs, we're ... looking at the increased ridership, is that gonua have any type
of bearing or impact?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Our operational costs for this year and next year will be the same under a contract.
We're going to need to go out and do a new RFP before the end of this year for the Fiscal
Year '09.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: But that won't affect us at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And if we were to look at a fee increase or even adding an
extra dollar, where do you see ... uh ... what area or what region would you recommend?
Would that be Central Maui? Tack ... put a dollar in there or--I mean 1 know this is a tough
question. It puts you on the spot but ... uh ...
MR. MEDEIROS: 1 don't have enough infonnation, at this point, to answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Which is why you'd like to take more time to look into it.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. . .. (chuckled) . " Exactly. We need to see where it's all gonna go.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: Right now, we're getting so many calls from so many areas, particularly,
Upcountry. You know, so we are looking at where we can now put some additional stops with
the added service Upcountry. As limited as the Upcountry service is, it's doing fairly well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Yeah, this thing has caught on like wildfire. Just for our
knowledge, what is the Oahu bus again? Vvllat do they charge?
MR. MEDEIROS: Their fares vary-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, vary.
MR. MEDEIROS: --quite widely for senior citizens, youth, and for the regular person.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: 1 don't have that in front of me right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. So it just varies from region to region.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. It's various costs of it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
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MR. MEDEIROS: If I'm not mistaken, I think like a senior citizen pays an annual pass of $30 and
pays a nominal fee when they board.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Don, thank you very much. You bring a lot of good news
to a lot of people. I think the question I have for you is based upon the projections that you
gave us, are you being very optimistic as far as ridership is concerned? Or were you very
conservative in your ridership projection?
MR. MEDEIROS: In our performance standards that we developed prior, we were very conservative.
On the ridership numbers that I've given you over the last few weeks, I think, I tend to be a tad
bit conservative; but I think they're gonna be close.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well I guess what I was looking for. You've said--and I
think all of us agree--price of gas is gonna continue going up. Roads are cloud. People are
getting the word. This is available. It's another methodology of getting around without
jumping in your car and fighting traffic. You get to rest on the bus; go to work; be a little more
refreshed; you know, all these good things. So if the ridership continued to increase and exceed
what you've projected, there might be another means of, you know, some more money coming
in that we haven't realized yet. Because again, you and everybody in this room has basically
said that this is just the beginning of what we consider a good thing.
The other question is ... the fleet you presently have and you keep expanding. Ifwe were to
expand in Lahaina by July 1st, on Westside, or any of the areas, do we have enough inventory as
far as vehicles are concerned (buses)? I know you said some new ones coming in (the bigger
ones) but when are they coming in? I think you said September or October, later in ...
MR. MEDEIROS: We're scheduled to receive the first couple three in June and I plan on having them
on the road in July.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In July? So they would be pretty much available for the first
part of the fiscal year? Do you think if we use the bigger vehicles for Westside, that way we
can expand the service by having bigger ridership, bigger loads? That might be another method
of working on this problem, instead of maybe putting 'em in the short runs because I don't
think the big buses and short runs would be really that good. I mean I'm not an expert but
more gas more, you know, because they're doing short runs. Right? So what do you think?
Would that help a little? I mean just looking for ways that.
MR. MEDEIROS: You really hit the nail on the head and that's where these units would go. It would
go on the Kaanapali-Lahaina run. It would go on the Lahaina-Central run. It would go on the
Central-Kihei runs, which are the heavy line runs that connect the communities. So that's
where those big units are gonna go. We've got six of those scheduled to come in.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three in July. When would the others be-MR. MEDEIROS: I'm due ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --on line?
MR. MEDEIROS: I'm due to go into the factory in about two weeks to accept the first three and then
I'll have a better handle of when the other three will actually be getting out of the factory.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because I think those are part ofthe equation because even if we
gave the money, if we didn't have the inventory to do the things that you're referring to, it will
make it ex ... , kind, difficult at best.
MR. MEDEIROS: The way our contract is set up Robert's right now. Councilmember Victorino, if
you give me the money, it will happen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Okay. So long as you say that.
MR. MEDEIROS: There is no question in my mind that it will happen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And they have the inventory to do it?
MR. MEDEIROS: We can do it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I'm glad you cleared that up. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mahalo, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANlLLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Director or Mr. Medeiros, talking about the motor
coaches, okay. My understanding from driving tour buses, you're talking about motor coaches
that are 50-60 passengers?
MR. MEDEIROS: They are carry, they'll carry a total of 42 seated.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It's the small, okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: And then you can probably put in--the way we've been doing it--probably about
another 30 or so people standing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
full-sized motor coach?

Okay.

So this is the size between the minibus and the real

MR. MEDEIROS: This is a 40-foot-low-floor transit bus.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Now I know out of West Maui came the suggestion that if
we extended routes that way, we could possibly take cars off the road by the tourists getting on
these buses to come back to Central Maui; and I think your answer to ... or your response to
that was that the system wasn't made for people to get on with lots of baggage and stuff. So
when we extend the routes to West Maui, it's mainly for ... if tourists ride it, it's to get around
Maui and not so much get to the airport; and then it would be more for the local residents to use
that system. Is that your ... urn ... I know that was your response at one question like that.
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct. The public transit system we have isn't really designed to move
people with all of their luggage.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: And ... uh ... but it's to move people and some of their luggage, you know, what
you can put on your lap and what you can put on the floor in front of you, we'll be able to
accommodate. We already have runs into Lahaina (into the Westside) everyday. Part of what
the Lahaina bypass folks are proposing are commuter service, so that's a run in the morning out
to the Westside and a run back in the afternoon. That's what their proposal is and it's mainly to
get the workers into buses and out of cars.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And my final question is, because the buses that you're
gonna order are not with the compartments for luggage. Right?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So if you're gonna take anything on, you gotta put it on your lap.
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. Hearing the Director's last comment, I would ask him to
maybe re-review and discuss with the employers on the Westside. Years ago--I'm sure most of
us can remember--that every morning at I think 5:30, those giant motor coaches would he in
our War Memorial complex picking up employees that the employers' were assisting in their
transportation to get them to work.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So it's not a new idea for the employers to participate in providing
transportation for employees on the Westside; and maybe part of the express component of
these new additional routes, could be a joint sharing with the employers because they get the
benefit. Their people come on scheduled time, you know, and again, it's, you know, we've
heard the benefit of taking cars off the road; but it would also reduce congestion at the
employers' site regarding their parking requirements also. So I think ifthere's a benefit for us
to see if the employers will participate in some type of voluntary contribution program that, you
know, it also could be considered part of an employee benefit from the employers' side of how
to retain employees. Is it, I'll pay that $2 for you to jump on the bus because then I don't have
to give you a parking stall on property. So I would ask that we at least look at those ideas
because in the past, it was a success in my view. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I would just like to add that I had the opportunity to look at the
Miami transit system and part of the responsibility was placed on employers, that they pay a fee
every month so that the employees could just hop on to get to work, and hop on to get back
home. So it's just a comment. Member Johnson, before I go on.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sure. I just wanted to let you know that some of the employers,
part of their participation and part of their employee benefit package is either just buying the
bus pass at 100 percent cost, you know, which is given to the employee for free, so they're
picking up the tab. Some of the other employer incentives, they're doing vanpool and they're
paying the full cost for the vanpool for their employees. Where we're having the trouble is not
so much our, I guess, our hotel employees--some of it is hotel employees because some of the
hours have been now, I guess, with two of the hotels, one undergoing renovation and one
flattened, we have some lessening of the traffic on those--but where we're having the problem
is the construction. The construction vehicles and trucks that line up for those construction
projects (and specifically Kaanapali Ocean Resort) that's huge; and those guys just park
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anywhere all along the cane road. That's the problem. If we could get the people off of there
and park their trucks like they do by Maalaea, that would be great. So that's going to be a
challenge for Mr. Medeiros, but I know that a lot of the employers are already doing their part.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that's the only item for Mr. Medeiros this afternoon.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, just to give you some heads-up in regards to the bond debt. Right
now, we're at $39,025,000.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thanks, Don.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's not what I wanted to hear.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just to ... for your information. Member Hokama, you want to cover your
two last items in regards to the provisos?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh! Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Members, if you would turn
on your latest revision of the worksheets, let me direct you to Page 12. On Page 12, Office of
the Mayor, Administration Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, Page 12, Office of the Mayor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Before sharing the proposal, Mr. Chairman, I will share with the
Committee that I did have a chance to have a face-to-face with Mayor Tavares early this
morning and she is very open and thankful that we are seriously considering this Capital
Improvements Coordinator. And she understood some of the reservations I had, and that she
would be very open for us to put this in the Office of the Mayor, so that we can ... uh ...
might be able to have it evaluated easier and then. Should it work out, then bring a proposal
back to Council in a future budget year for consideration under Department of Management
and also civil service status. So Members, my recommendation to you today, under the Office
of the Mayor, for a proviso would be "provided that the Mayor may establish a position in the
Office of the Mayor, to determine whether the position can improve coordination and reporting
of Countywide capital improvement projects, and further provided that the Mayor may submit
an assessment of the function and position with future budget proposals".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any comments in regards to the proposal? Member
Medeiros followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. I would just ask Council Chair Hokama if these
positions be appointed positions, or civil service, or limited term appointments, Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. There are two basically Departments in our County--one is, of
course, Office of Council Services and the Office of the Mayor--that does not require EP
counts; and it is being projected that through the Office of the Mayor, it will be an appointed
position.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: She did inform though that ... I will share with you that she is planning to
put out a proposal to be published to receive applicants for this, since she would like to have
experienced project management, in assisting in getting this program initiated.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair Hokama. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, thank you, Chair. Would this include the funding? Are we
going to insert the funding along with this proviso? And also the CIP Coordinator position was
partnered with an Administrative Assistant position, and the total amount of those two positions
was $82,118.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, for Ms. Anderson's query.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I am just ... have just focused on the CIP Coordinator, and that is what the
Mayor and I only specifically talked about. And Members, at this point in time, I would say I
believe the Mayor has some sufficient wiggle room that this can be encompassed within the
current request.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well I would like some assurance that the wiggle room is there
because in order for this position to be successful, the person's gouna have to have an
Administrative Assistant. So we don't want to give them, you know, a recipe for failure. We
want to give them a recipe for success. So I would request that we give the Mayor the funding
that she requested and we can wiggle.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama, is this for both positions?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just that CIP Coordinator?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I would prefer to do it for two positions as well because that
is what she requested.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the Mayor's request is to move the CIP Coordinator from
the Management office to the Office of the Mayor. Any objections to that move?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any objections of the move of the Administrative
Assistant from the office of the Management (Department of Management) to the Office of the
Mayor?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I object.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're gonna take a headcount here. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Object.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Object.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Support.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. There is four noes. The Chair would vote no on this one here. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We tried.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: One, two, three. One position moves.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, we tried.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then we'll deal with the funding. Okay, moving on. Mr. Hokama, your
third item?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan. I believe we put the assessment under Public Works. Ithink
we shifted it, Mr. Chainnan.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In the back get 'em.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, let's go look.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Page 20.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And we put it on Page 20, which we put it into Administration, since this
would be an assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And so it's at the top of the Admin. Highway Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I am recommending this language because at this time I am
unable to propose to the Committee a percentage or a dollar regarding the cost sharing. So my
language proposal would be "provided that the Administration shall consider appropriate
cost-sharing processes so that the industry benefiting from this assessment shares in its cost".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any comments to the proposed proviso for the
downhill bicycle tour assessment study?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I like the concept. Is there any possibility of putting some kind
of percentage or you'd rather leave that open, Mr. Chair and Mr. Hokama? Councilmember
Hokama, would you rather keep that without any percentages? Or you know like 50/50, I was
thinking, you know, share cost?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. In response to Mr. Victorino, Mr. Chairman, I was
thinking in the same lines as he was originally. But then, should the industry, one, either is
unable or refuses to come up with that portion (required portion) I would hate to see that no
assessment be done ... because I think we've had enough concerns brought up by the
community regarding safety, inconvenience, violations, that I am hoping this assessment would
be seen from a very beneficial and positive manner from all parties that will be participating.
As well as, we may want to have some people from ... that represent the pedestrian
component. We may want to have people that is interested in the greenways bike paths
program to be participating. So I believe this assessment needs to take place, Members, and I
would hate to have the proviso either stall or not have this assessment move forward. That is
why I've adjusted my position and am asking you to consider this proposal; but it is again,
Chairman, just a proposal that I've promised the Committee to present for their consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Chair. I ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can appreciate that, Councilmember Hokama; and, again, you
did make a good point, but let's use the other side of the coin. Let's say they don't want to do
it. You know, let's say they don't want to participate, what methodology--and again, we need
the assessment. That's clear. I think we all agree in this room. What we're asking is: hey,
you're gonna benefit, the public, whoever benefits, that industry-wise (whether it's the
freelances or the bike toUT companies or like you just mentioned others who may benefit) may
want to help with cost sharing. You know, Lynne Wood has mentioned that she was willing to
help with cost sharing and all of that. My question is: if they didn't want to do it, then what
alternative? Because you've said, even with no percentage, what if they said they didn't?
What would happen then, Mr. Chair? I guess that's my question on that part.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As my language illustrates, the Administration will be required to at least
give a very sincere attempt at securing cost sharing participation; and once they can fulfill that
requirement of at least even its best attempt that would not prohibit them from still moving
forward on the assessment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama. It didn't ... it didn't say sincere
effort and all that. I understand-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --but the words weren't there. So, okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I was just wondering, you know, how far we'd take this as far as that is concerned. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Member Molina?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And Chairman, that's why we are inserting the word "shall" instead of
"may".
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It is not a discretion, whether or not they will-CHAIR PONTANILLA: We "shall" do it.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --try and have cost sharing. They are required to go out and try and fulfill
that cost-sharing component of the language proviso. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know, just to further expound
like on Mr. Victorino's comments, I think he brought up an interesting point because they could
say Hno".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And I'll support the proviso and although it's difficult for us to come
up with a specific percentage. I mean they could agree ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If they do agree to it, they could say 10 percent. My personal
preference would be at minimum 50 percent; but if they don't, I think we scrap the study. I
mean $250,000 to pay a consultant just to make a determination on the effects of this bike tour.
I mean personally it's ... (chuckled) ... exorbitant. I think we could consider an alternative,
forming a bike tour task force. There's a lot of good resources in this community that could
give their input and make an assessment. It's a much cheaper alternative. So you know, to try
and answer that question of if they don't participate. That may be one consideration. Save us
$250,000. Then go out and ask the community to give their own study and assessments, and I
don't know if that would work to the downhill tour industry's advantage if they don't
participate in this study. So, just a thought.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members? None. Okay, Members. The Chair's
recommendation is that we move forward on this with the proviso as Mr. Hokama has noted
"provided that the Administration shall consider appropriate cost-sharing processes so that the
industry benefiting from this assessment shares in its cost". Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have a question that because we're allocating $250,000 for the
study. Has anyone thought about doing only $125,000 with a provision that the remainder of
the total costs for doing the study come from the industry, and only funding the portion that
we're willing to fund?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: $125,000 will do only halfway ... (chuckled) ... in regards to the study
themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. But what I'm saying is basically treating it like, I mean even
if you did Maui Bicycle Alliance or something and gave it as a grant and had them go out and
get a request for proposal to conduct the study, then it would be a one-to-one match; and we
would put in $125,000 with $125,000 being raised from within the industry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that suggestion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Point of infurmation, please, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If ... with the Members indulgence, to Corporation Counsel. The way we
have it listed currently in the Budget, does it in any way prohibit the Department from
considering that suggestion from Ms. Johnson, which would be a grant ... if that's the method
they choose to ... uh ... the method for them to secure the assessment?
MS. VILLAROSA: What page are you looking at?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm looking at Page 20 of 50 in the current version of the revised
worksheets. It's on the top of the page under Administration - Highway Fund, No.2, we just
have it listed as Downhill Bike Tour Assessment.
MS. VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I'm just, I don't see it as being restrictive where you could not take
into account Ms. Johnson's ... {end a!tape, start 5A at 3:08 p.rn.} . .. adjustment is to provide a
grant of these funds. I would like to know if you see there, is there any issues that you think we
may need to address? Or do we need to state that it shall be for a grant? Or can we leave it in
this manner and have the Department Administration come up with the methology [sic] of how
to secure the assessment?
MS. VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I ... the Department--if you leave it as is, the Department could
implement it either way. They could ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In-house.
MS. VILLAROSA: Right. Do it in-house.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Outsource.
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MS. VILLAROSA: They could ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Grant.
MS. VILLAROSA: They could grant it out. I was just thinking about Councihnember Johnson's
suggestion of doing half of the funds. The only problem I see with, and I don't know if it will
be a problem, but it could be a problem is that, you know when we go out for procurement.
Like say if we do it in-house, we would only have half of the funds to procure the contract with
and I don't know how the bike companies would pay for the other half because the contract
would be with the County.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. VILLAROSA: So there might be, I mean maybe we could work something out but that could be a
possible problem.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. I yield back to Ms. Johnson.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And that was kind of my thing because we always need the
allocation because if we're issuing the contract. And I guess the only way that I would say my
suggestion would be workable is if it was specifically a grant to an entity that would go out and
raise--from whatever means--the remaining $125,000 and they would be the ones to actually
complete the work and then present the information back to the County. But I still think that if
there's enough expertise and will out there, if people really want to get these bicycles in a safe
environment, prevent a lot of the conflicts, you know what, people want a lot; but they have to
be willing to contribute too. And I think that there's enough will in this commuuity, and there's
certainly enough people that would probably contribute to the grant just to have the study
completed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a comment from the Chair because the Chair was pretty
involved in this request in the downhill bike tour assessment. It's not gonna only be downhill
tour-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --bike tour assessment. It would be an assessment for the County in regards
to bicycle users on our highways. So it involves, not only the tour companies, but the public
themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's a good point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the Chair is recommending that the downhill bike tour assessment of
$250,000 be included as well as the proviso as provided by Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.... (pause) ... Okay, going to West Maui, Page 29 of 50. The very
last item, CIP 28-10, increase the ... we had an issue in regards to the increase of $300,000 to
the West Maui Community Plan district. The Mayor has proposed $300,000. The Chair has
proposed an addition of $300,000 to come out with a $600,000 appropriation for road
resurfacing in West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I got a proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson, I think you had ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Johnson!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's all right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I was looking at ... actually Member Anderson. . .. (chuckled) . .. Member
Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think we're all getting a little brain dead. . .. (chuckled) ... I
still would, you know, because of my request last evening, I still believe that given the roadway
problems that we're having and the circulation and because we have the main road, which we
have no i:ontrol over at all--which is Honoapiilani Highway--a lot of our roads now are getting
such heavy use because when they're doing the roadway construction, they're probably going
to be starting with Keawe Street. They're gonna be starting some of these other projects. Our
roads are really not going to be in good shape. So that's why I had suggested that, to look at
... and I believe Puukulii Road is in, you know--and I explained to Mr. Medeiros what's going
on with that, so it's not gonna be a total burden on the County because Kaanapali Development
Corporation has agreed to pay some of that. There is, I believe, a remainder. I'd say it's at
least $100,000, maybe a little bit more than that because they didn't use all the money from the
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lower road repaving project; but given that they didn't use all the money--because they couldn't
go forward with the Puukulii Road--I would just ask that as a consideration. I wanted to take it
from specific areas but those areas have already been shut off to me and precluded. I just
checked with staff and they basically said that for roadway resurfacing, they ... it's not wise to
put it into bond because of the life expectancy of the actual function or the actual thing that's
taking place, so perhaps some drainage or another area. But I just would respectfully ask the
body to consider, not only the recommended addition of your funds, but to just level us off at
the $1 million and that way, I figure the $100,000 carryover ... plus, again, I'll go back to the
$508,000 that was used principally for, I guess, it's an access, you know. That was $508,000
that wasn't coming to West Maui, that was originally going to come to West Maui. So that's
my rationale, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regards to Puukulii Road, like I said last night Member
Anders ... , Johnson.
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gees! ... (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ViCTORINO: Anderson.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Three hours sleep. . .. (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know; same for me. . .. (chuckled) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So Member Johnson, that once the agreement comes about, then the Chair is
willing to consider a budget amendment to cover the cost to rePave Puukulii Road for the
community along that particular roadway. So once the Public Works as well as the private
owner as well as the community come to an agreement, then we can move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I don't have a problem with that, you know, but so
many times, it's like then when the budget amendment comes forward, where do you ... what
do you cannibalize? ... (chuckled) ... And that's my only concern, Mr. Chair, is if! don't put
it in, you know, I mean even if I just provisoed it or said okay. If I'm adding the additional
funding, that would be provided that there's some kind of an agreement. I mean however we
do it, I just want to make sure that there's the money, that that is available when we want to go
forward with it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Page 7, Housing and ... this is "Grant for Housing and Homeownership
Counseling Program". I have here revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Delete. Delete.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Delete?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the Chair recognizes the time. Gonna take a midafternoon recess
and we'll reconvene at 3:30. I know we have a public hearing tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Pablo, if you can get Public Works over here. There's questions that we
need to ask.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You think us going get to the reach today? No way, eh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This meeting is in recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So in other words ... (inaudible) ... and that means seven.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll return at 3:30.... (gavel) ...
RECESS:

3:15 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:38 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel)... The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Before I start, Members, the Chair is aware that tonight we do have a real
property tax meeting, hearing in the Chambers at 6:30. So the Chair's intent is to go to
5 o'clock and then we'll break for lunch.
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: For lunch? '" (chuckled) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Dinner.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Give 'em another lunch. . .. (chuckled) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For dinner--again, three hours of sleep--and we'll return back here at 6:30.
Gives you enough time?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Members, I was hoping to go into the real property
tax site this evening but, you know, since we're gonna have that hearing, the Chair is holding
off on the real property tax rates review until tomorrow. Just to let you know, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we have just a brief explanation maybe from Staff? I
don't know. They probably only got three hours of sleep last night too. . .. (chuckled) ... But
it's a bit confusing, even to me, that we're having a hearing on the real property tax rates when
we haven't actually adopted them yet. So it's really ... urn ... what's before us tonight is a
range of rates. Is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. It's not set, yet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll do that tomorrow morning.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then move forward in regards to closing out this budget review.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Right now, we do have the Public Works Director with us. I do have
something on Page 4, but I think on Page 4, it is a matter of the decision that's gonna be made
in the State Legislature.

-100 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2007

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 4.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If the bill in regards to hiring the people from Hui Malama ... uh ...
Mr. Hokama, if you can provide us with some information.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Members of the Committee, I did have a call
and a very good conversation with Mr. Kane this morning, who is at the State Capitol
representing our interest. He did inform me that to share with you that the conferees have
decided to defer till tomorrow, which is the deadline for most decisions on all conference
matters, this particular issue. So stating that, I'm assuming, from my experience, that the
conferee chairs are negotiating some type of conference draft solution so that it can be
presented to the full conference committees of the House and Senate for a final decision. That
is the status at this time, Mr. Chairman. Hopefully tomorrow, Mr. Kane will be able to give us
a comment on what is the final outcome ofthe conference committee. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Moving forward. Member Anderson, on Page 20,
regarding the decrease by contract services for Palama Drive storm drain, you were
entertaining a proviso?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. Chair Hokama is assisting me on this, Mr. Chair. It's not
going to be as easy a proviso as I thought, so if we could have a little bit more time. In fact,
they're conferring about it right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe, we can take it up tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Fine, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But we'iljust hold it off.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, tomorrow. . .. (pause) . .. Let's see. The item that I have for
Mr. Arakawa involves the Page 34, CIP 26-71, this is in regards to Item (d), Wailuku-Kahului
Wastewater Reclamation Facility Tsunami Protection. I think the issue that Member Anderson
had is in regards to the shoring of the project, shoring of the facility, meaning if we're gonna
put some barriers outside ofthe wastewater facility. Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll give you some time to find that area.
CotJNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that has been alleviated. The Solid Waste Division had
David Taylor, in one of our breaks, come '" came and explained to me that until they
... um . . . this phase has nothing to do with putting anything in the water or shoring up
anything. It will be the next phase and that they will be coming to the Council previous to
making any final design and give us all the alternatives to look at, so my concern has been
alleviated. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Let's see. One fast check here. Members, we do have
Mr. Arakawa here and Mr. Arakawa has some concerns. At this time, I'd like to have
Mr. Arakawa provide us his concerns regarding the Fiscal Year 2008 Budget. Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I had several things for the Committee to consider. We did
have concern about that preliminary deletion of some expansion positions in the Solid Waste
Division, primary the deletion of a Civil Engineer III and the Operation Superintendent. As
you know, we've had several notices of violation over the recent past for some landfill
violations, and we really need Administrative support to ensure that we can have ongoing
permit compliance and also to provide support for our proposed capital improvement projects.
The Engineer III is really needed to do that. We also need someone to really oversee all of the
operations for all of our landfills, which are at Central Maui, Hana, Lanai, and Molokai. This
person (the Operation Superintendent) would also oversee refuse collection. So there's
currently--other than the Division Chief--there's no one really looking and really looking at the
daily, day-to-day operations of the landfills as well as the collection site. So we feel it would
be a much needed addition to our staff. We also have some issues regarding the deletion of
$400,000 for professional services, which is in our operations budget. This amount was the
amount that was budgeted for the Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan in the last fiscal
year and this was just carried over. My request ... I'd like to provide a little bit more
redirection of these funds, if I may. For Fiscal Year '08, I just wanted to propose that we
include $50,000 under professional services to contract the billing software consultant and this
is to help us to improve our billing processes within the Solid Waste Division, when we do all
of our, you know, our collections for all of our bills. Under rentals, we would like to request an
additional $100,000 be added to the proposed $100,000 already included under that sub-object
code. We are asking for a number of expansion positions and, of course, a couple of them, I
am requesting, at this point, the CE III and the Operation Superintendent in addition to the
Engineering Technician and the Accountant III. So basically, we would need additional office
space and office renovation monies to house these additional people. I apologize that we did
not include that in our original submittal to the Council. I would also like to request that an
additional $200,000 be included in the Central Maui Landfill I and II landfill gas PER. This
CIP is intended to hire a consultant to assist the County in doing and evaluating a request for
proposals for a landfill gas to energy project, and we believe the additional monies are needed
in order to provide the services we are requesting. So it's basically just trying to redirect the
money that formally was proposed in the professional services category.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the Director in regards the requirements that
he's asking for at this time? None?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know under your Solid Waste - Administration on a preliminary
end-of-third-quarter report, you know, your division has 37 percent left of its fund; and overall,
the whole Department has about 34 percent left of your balance available. So you obviously
have some savings. I guess one of the savings is what you just shared that you folks didn't do
the integrated plan funding and are now trying to move it over the next year's budget. But
since you have, you know, one more quarter, Mr. Director, is there no way you can have your
integrated requirements encumbered this year?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama. The $400,000 that was appropriated in the last fiscal
year, that contract, that money has been encumbered. It may not already have been spent, but
all those monies have been encumbered to contract with a consultant, who is GBB, who is
doing the Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan update.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So that $400,000 you were talking about is something different?
MR. ARAKAWA: The $400,000 I was talking about is under professional services and it's in the
proposed FY '08 Budget; and the preliminary discussions of the Budget Committee indicated
that that would be cut. So that would be my request to the Committee that instead of cutting
that, if you could redirect it to the projects that I just mentioned, which is the billing software,
the rentals, and also for the landfill gas preliminary engineering report under CIP.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know if I may ask you this, Mr. Director? Your division scopes out
and picks the software, then you inform MIS to go and procure and secure the software for
your division's requirements? Is that the process that goes on? Or is MIS, having the initial
responsibility to come up with the software options for your division, and then your division
picks what is compatible as well as meets the needs of the division for its billing requirements?

- 103-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2007

MR. ARAKAWA: If MIS is willing to do that, I mean we're certainly open to that; but we had wanted
to just basically take the initiative to try to hire someone to improve our billing prooesses. If
the Council believes that, you know, MIS is the more appropriate party to do it, that would be
fine with us. We just feel a need that we have to improve or we should improve our billing
processes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. And I appreciate that because if you can have efficiencies, hopefully,
you'll save money; and in the end, hopefully, we can either keep rates at its current levels or,
you know, make adjustments downward, which is more than likely never. But I'm just curious
how your division or your Department has operated in the past regarding the software
requirements. Is it driven from your Department and then moves up to MIS? Or has MIS done
the initial legwork and then come down to you and say "Director Arakawa, these are what we
can support; the system is okay; it's compatible; there's no additional need for hardware; this is
what can be done; it can ... work with Finance to take care the acceptance and of bill
collection and appropriate accounting requirements".
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, this has been somewhat new for our division.
previous years, actually, the Department of Finance handled the billing for us.

In

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: And I believe maybe it was a couple years ago, we basically took over this
function. So we basically inherited the programs and whatever Finance was using at that time
is what we inherited. But we feel that it can be improved, so that's why we want to hire a
consultant to help us improve our billing processes. I mean that's the bottom line for us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is your consultant, or has your division or your Department, Mr. Director,
thought about outsourcing this component?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, we haven't at this point, although that could be an option as well. One
possibility, I guess, could be ... uh ... yeah. That could be a possibility and also that could be
looked at as part of the Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan update as far as how we
could rethink our operations or reorganize our operations, but that remains to be seen at this
point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and my last question. When Finance, I guess, transferred this
component to your division, did bodies or positions come with it ... or just the responsibility
of taking care of this component?
MR. ARAKAWA: I am relying on my memory now, but I believe we had one body that was
transferred.
VICE"CHAIR HOKAMA: Was that ...
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MR. ARAKAWA: One position that-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: A clerk?
MR. ARAKAWA: --was transferred.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Clerk III or something, account clerk? Right? Do you know?
MR. ARAKAWA: I. ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you recall?
MR. ARAKAWA: I can't recall ofThand. I believe it was one position that was transferred with that
function.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comment ... responses. Mr. Chairman, thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Milton, I know that we've met and this is one subject we had
not had an opportunity to discuss. But with regard to the International Building Code and
accelerating through assistance from outside personnel, I think when I had met with you
previously on this particular issue, the importance of accelerating that will do what ... just for
the benefit of the other Members?
MR. ARAKAWA: There is a move afoot to try to ensure that all of the counties have a common
building code, which we all use ... subject to local amendments. All of the counties are trying
to move toward adoption of this International Building Code. There is gonna be a need for
some training for our staff on this but we are working on trying to get a package together, for
the Council to consider. I believe we're looking at something, hopefully, to be submitted some
time in the latter part ofthis year.
COUNCIL.l\lliMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: To have the Council submit with, along with the local amendments and the
adoption of the IBC.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. If you were to have the assistance that you require in order
to bring this forward because it's something that, I think, the long-term care partnership is
really advocating for too, the Fire Department, you know, others. The amount was ... was it
$10,000 or $20,000 that you would need for a consultant ... in order to help accelerate the
completion ofthat so we can move forward?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson, I believe the portion you are talking about pertains to a
small portion of the IBC per se. This pertains to long-term care homes and how that's
regulated as part of the IBC. We would need some sort of a study to guide us. We probably
wanted ... I know for myself, I wanted to get a better idea, a better handle on how the other
states also regulate this as well. That's the reason for this additional money. I know that that
amount was thrown out $10-15,000 and I guess that's the best guess that I can come up with at
this point.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Thank you very much. Mr. Chair, when ... because Milton
has been kind enough and other consultants and the State personnel have been working on this,
one of the things that we have within, I guess, the International Building Code and moving
towards a standardized framework is that the people with disabilities are really having
challenges because it's a new component. I think Mr. Peter Dirks and also locally is one of, I
think he's the only architect on the island that actually is able to look at and analyze what the
needs are of individuals so that you can age in place. The whole reason behind this is to
... (end aftape, start 5B at 3:58 p.m.) . .. so that the modifications when Mr. Arakawa is ready
to come forward with his plan, that those modifications are there with regard to the persons
with disabilities. That's principally so that you would be able to not have to be
institutionalized or if there's a care-home standard that that care home would know exactly
what was required in order to operate underneath the parameters. So I humbly request that we
add in, I believe it was $15,000 we figured would be the, I guess it would be the minimum that
we would need. We kinda wanted 20 but we're gonna see if we can find the revenue from
other sources. But Mr. Arakawa and the people at the State level said that we are trying to get
other funds, but that would be the request; it's to add $15,000. And which account,
Mr. Arakawa, would ... if we were to do that, would that be under professional services, under
Administration?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson, you should probably add it somewhere in Development
Services Administration. They have an operating budget, and professional services would be a
good place to insert it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. So that would be my request, Mr. Chair, is to add
$15,000 for professional services in the DSA in which department, Milton? The DSA
professional?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yeah. Development Services Administration.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Administration, and then put it under professional services. And it
would be for the specific purpose to complete that portion of the International Building Code
component that relates to aging in place and persons with disabilities.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to the request made by
Mr. Arakawa? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Director, good afternoon. Just for my
clarification, your reference to the Integrated Solid Waste Master Plan, the $400,000. Had this
plan not been, I mean, initiated already in terms of trying to finalize the master plan?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, we've hired the consultant and they've started the work on
updating the master plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MR. ARAKAWA: So we're hoping that they can be substantially done toward the latter part of this
year although they're getting somewhat of a slow start on it but we also need to have a Solid
Waste Advisory Committee appointed and have that Committee work with our consultant and
our staff in putting together something. So hopefully, we're looking at the latter part of this
year to present, hopefully, some of the substantial findings to the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So that, but that master plan is almost complete then?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, the consultant was recently, I think, brought onboard late last year or early
this year, so it's not a long period of time. They've basically just started not too long ago.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Because in prior discussions, the reference to the ... that, that
Integrated Solid Waste Plan was one that generated discussion based on the need to develop a
plan in order to take a look at budget considerations in various CIP projects. So I was under the
impression that this was a plan that was virtually about to be completed. So if it's not, you
know, we're going deal with it; but can you just provide clarification for me on the ... your
request for $200,000 of the Central Landfill in terms of the need to hire the consultant for the
landfill gas?
MR.ARAKAWA: Sure. Councilmember Mateo, as you know, we've just about completed the
closure of Phase I and II of the landfill at Central Maui and we are currently accepting
municipal solid waste at Phase IV. At the rate it's filling up, it's gonna be filling up, you know,
fairly soon too. So we want to basically hire a consultant to help us craft a request for
proposals, so that we can choose the appropriate vendor to effectuate a landfill gas-to-energy
project, where the vendor would be responsible for basically all of the costs. Whatever
electricity can be generated would be sold to Maui Electric and there would be, hopefully,
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some royalties that would be paid to the County. Now, exactly what the terms and conditions
would be, it's all subject to negotiation, and that's what this consultant would help us to do.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And this is under your professional services request?
MR. ARAKAWA: In the Budget that was originally submitted to the Council, there was $400,000 for
professional services in the operations budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: So the tentative proposal of the Committee was to delete that and so I am
suggesting that we add ... uh ... instead of cutting. If you're gonna cut that, if we can add an
additional $200,000 to the Central Maui Landfill I and II landfill gas preliminary engineering
report, which is included as a CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Director, how could a consultant be considered part of a CIP
request?
MR. ARAKAWA: The consultant will help us do, like I said, to hire an RFP, to do an RFP, so that we
can do ... uh . . . we can award a proposal so that the vendor can actually do the landfill
gas-to-energy project. Now, where exactly it's in the Budget, I leave that up to the Council. If
the Council believes it should be in CIP or Operations, I mean I'll leave that up to you; but I'm
just suggesting that this is what I'm recommending to the Council that we pursue.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Director, in regards to the billing that is being requested, in the
Management Department in the general fund area, they had requested $65,000 to acquire,
implement new utility billing system. As far as the billing system, doesn't it include landfill
billing also ... when you look at your budget details on 10-13?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, I am not familiar with that particular proposal but I can check with the
Managing Director's office on that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any more questions for the Director at this
time? If not, thank you very much, Mr. Arakawa, for being here.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members. Turning to Page 14 of 50, this is the grants and
disbursements for Maui Electric Company Solar Water Heater Initiatives. The Chair's
recommendation is to provide $150,000 for this program. We heard Maui Electric this
mommg. Is there any objections to the Chair's proposal?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none. Thank you. So we'll just close this item out. Member
Johnson, on the same page, No. 26. If you can provide us your update on that?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I did and I was able to check with Mr. Eng and that's this
Grant No. 26 for Kauaula Instream Flow Study and they are continuing on and he does not
require any renaming because this is the project description.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. So we'll scratch that off, Members. Member
Mateo, you had any changes that you want to make at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, yes. Thank you very much. Mr. Chair, if you look on
Page 27 just for the reference (27 of 50, CIP 30-8) that is the Molokai Parks' baseyard. In the
discussion with the Department prior, it was indicated that there was a consideration for the
extended parking lot on the same park grounds, which is on Duke Maliu Park. Initially, during
that discussion, I was informed that the parking lot could have been included in the total of the
Molokai Parks' baseyard. However, I was informed this morning that it's not included in that
particular line and this morning, I was informed that we would need $250,000 to add the
parking lot onto that project. So with that in mind, Chairman, I ask you to look at Page 30,
under Highway Funds, Molokai Community Plan, District Road Resurfacing. I would like to
move $200,000 from that line item as well as CIP 31-19, Countywide Road Resurfacing, to
move 50,000 of those dollars and move it to the Molokai Parks baseyard CIP.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you repeat the last one? What page?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That would be Page 30, reducing Countywide Road Resurfacing by
$50,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Why don't we take 150 from there and 100 from the other one?
What you think? ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any question to the change that Member Mateo made? Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. The only question I had is ... because I know we added in
some money and I'm not sure about the use of highway funds for that particular item, can staff
address that issue?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's the only question I have is the use of the funds, and is that
appropriate to transfer?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We would have ... (inaudible) ...
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair? We would be reducing the-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
MS. REVELS: --general fund transfer to the highway fund, and just increasing general fund money
for the Molokai baseyard parking lot.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So it can be done.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support that. I think, you know, Mr. Mateo brings a good
... urn ... something that's very important and, and, and needed in Molokai. I had asked the
Chair Hokama if we could take a little more, like maybe $100,000 or $150,000 out of the
Countywide end so that Molokai wouldn't be impacted so greatly because they don't have very
much left over for resurfacing purposes; but I was told that's not a great idea. But you know, I
was willing to try to help out the little guy in our community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. . .. (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: .,. (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ViCTORINO: I just thought I'd add.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... (inaudible) ...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. .., (chuckled) . .. You're such a Santa
Claus.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... (inaudible) ... five foUf.... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I get scolding all the time. No problem.
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And just for, you know, assurance
purposes in looking for where we'd find the money from, I didn't want to cut specific districts
or areas or programs other than looking at cutting or moving money from within my own
district.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Anderson, you got that language?
Pau? Nopau?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's being typed up as we speak.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the Chair would like to call a short recess.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Return at 4:20. Thank you. Recess. . .. (gavel) ...

RECESS:

4:12 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:33 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel)... The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. At this time, the Chair would like to call on the Parks and Recreation Director and
Deputy Director forward.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't know where we ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We're ready.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My head sore already... , (inaudible) ...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tamara, for being here. Zach, thank you for coming. Gonna be
discussing the proposed rates and fees for Waiehu Golf course at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought we was ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know you made some changes, and I gotta apologize that the ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --was that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh! ... (pause) . .. I'm just trying to help Mr. Mateo by the
way. He couldn't find it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: A handout was provided to us on April 24th?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: April 24th?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I probably lost that one too.
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I gotta get my young ladies to file these things.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, that's the second one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (inaudible) ... yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) . .. Oh, I get piles over here. This is just this
week. This is ... (inaudible) . .. look at the files I get. This is ... (inaudible) . .. I'm
... (inaudible) .. .
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You got a computer ... (inaudible) . .. Right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Got it. Yeah, we have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You got the page number for the golf course?
MS. REVELS: 37.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: April 24·h •
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 37, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, 37 of ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members. The proposal made by the Administration is on that page,
the initial proposal, and I understand there is another proposal in regards to eliminating, I think
it was the twilight rates or some kind. If Ms. Horcajo can provide us with more information.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you. The information that was distributed on April 24th took into account the
comments that were made by the Council and from our golf course staff after our original
meeting with you; and those comments then came up with another schedule that was a little
easier to read; and also incorporated the wording that the Council members had suggested.
Rather than having a weekday rate with daily and twilight rates as well as a weekend rate with
daily and twilight rates, we merged those two fee schedules into one, taking into account the
comments that were made by Council members. For example, the current daily rate for
residents with resident card, we changed ... uh ... well it's currently $8. Our proposal is to
change that to $10 daily and twilight would be a $5 rate; and we would change the wording
there to "Maui County resident with card". The proposal for ... urn . .. as the current
ordinance, on Page 37, reads "for retirees with resident card" and the current rate is $3 during
the weekday and is $5 during the weekend. We changed that to "Maui County resident senior
with card" and the rate would be $5 any day (weekday/weekend) or $3 for twilight for any day
(weekday/weekend). The next category, which currently reads "for none Maui County resident
with Hawaii driver's license or Hawaii state identification card", which is currently at $20 for
the daily rate and $25 for the weekend rate. We changed that to $30 for the daily rate, $15 for
the twilight rate, and it would read "Hawaii state resident other than Maui County with Hawaii
driver's license". And the last category, which is for ... it currently reads "for none residents"
would be "none Hawaii state residents". The current rate is $40 for a day (daily) and it's
We propose changing it to $55 any time
currently at $45 for the weekend rate.
(weekday/weekend) with a $30 rate for twilight.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to the rates being proposed at this
time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Tamara. With the rates that you've developed, because I
really appreciate you taking into consideration the comments that were made. Do you believe
that the supplemental transfer that we had actually included--I don't know if you've seen that in
the Budget--to take $100,000 from the general fund and then move it into your golf fund. What
will the rates be? Or what were the, I guess, the revenues be generated? Would this program
then in your estimation be able to pay for itself without any supplemental transfer from the
general fund?
MS. HORCAJO:
revenue--

Since this is a pilot project, with the twilight rate fee, we did not change any

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: --stream indications because we felt that the numbers that we had crunched earlier,
since they showed daily and weekend would even out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So the end result would be that the revenue that you had
projected with the increase, albeit it's a different increase from this one, would pan out.
MS. HORCAJO: That's what we're-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: --proposing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Chair, thank you. Let me start by saying "I still don't
like it". Basic reasons--you know, I'm not a golfer so it's not gonna affect me--but I think
when we had talked, we wanted: a. our residents to be as least impacted as possible. Okay?
And the twilights is great. And now what you might have is a bunch of people fighting for
twilight tee times instead of regular tee times, especially when you're looking at taking the
resident, none, the resident rate up to $lD for regular and dropping it then to $6 for twilight,
you know. I question those. I question the holiday, going from $8 to $12, twilight $6. I don't
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really have a particular problem raising the none resident (none Maui resident) because again,
as some of my colleagues have said, is ... with the influx of the super ferry and people coming
in to play golf "hey, you like play, you pay". But when it comes to our local residents (our
retirees) on the weekends are you know going from $3 to $6, holidays, big 50 percent jump.
For them, that's a lot. Now, I know you left it as the weekdays regular. Tamara, you left the
$3 $3. But I, you know, I'm just not comfortable with raising rates a lot for our residents. I
think that was the message that was being sent ... is that do as much as you can. We're
willing to put some money, especially for junior golf and our high school, those students that
have this course to play and practice on ... because, like other practice fields, we the County
of Maui provides it for our students (our juniors) whether they're tennis players, whether
they're soccer players, whether they're baseball players, whatever sport. Right? We provide
that at no charge. And all of a sudden, you know, you're raising the rates on the residents. I'd
prefer the rates we had and keeping that. And the twilight now, I'm afraid twilight, when you
have summer and certain months, yeah, maybe more accessibility, more usage; but you come
into the winter months, it gets too dark for twilight zone--I mean twilight. You know, nine ...
night. I said twilight zone. I apologize. . .. (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm thinking of twilight zone. I'm twilighted [sic] as it is.
Excuse me everybody.
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just find it hard. You know, we've talked about residents,
residents, and all the rates we just try not to impact our residents as much as possible.
Whenever we have to, yeah, we have no choice; but this is one of those that I really don't
believe we have to. So if you can justifY it, and my esteemed colleague Chair Hokama is
probably more astute to this than I am, but I just don't like what I see when it comes to our
residents. The rest, I have no problem, you know. They want to come from the neighbor
islands and play here, come from the mainland, you're welcome, and we'll charge you
accordingly. I have no problem with that but you know, Tamara, what--Ms. Horcajo. Sorry.
What you are, why the big jump as far as our residents are concerned?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. HORCAJO: It's the job. Our job as Director and Deputy is to provide you a balanced budget for
the golf course. And this is a way for the golf fund to be self-sufficient and it's up to you if you
want to, you know, help us to look at ways to make is self-sufficient; and if we want to
continue subsidizing it from the County general fund, that's the other option. The Maui
County resident rate, we did look at a proposal of raising it $2 and then the twilight rate would
actually be lowering it. It is a $5 proposal. I'm not sure if you were looking at the most
current one.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't know how many I got in front of me, so I don't know
which one.
MS. HORCAJO: Yeah. .,. (chuckled) ... Let me see and ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This?
MS. HORCAJO: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You got another one, again?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, my God.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wrong one. They gave you the handout yesterday.
MS. HORCAJO: Yeah. Yeah, there's a different one there. So the resident rate, it is a proposed $2
increase on here and ... but the twilight rate would actually be a $3 decrease. So again, the
Department is just trying to come out with a zero balance for the golf fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. It's still $10 instead of$8 .... (sigh) ... Our seniors up
to $5; I'd like to see them stay at $3. Our junior golf, those kinds of areas I don't mind
subsidizing and helping because again, you can play softball for nothing. You can play tennis
for nothing. You can go swinnning for basically nothing. And so to me, those are the areas
that I think, for our golf course, there should be some ability for us (as the County) to put in to
offset for those people in particular. Those outside residents, visitors, and all that, I have no
problem with that. This is fine. But I just feel like those two rates in particular and our
students. I know Council Chair Hokama wanted to really look at making sure that our golf
course was available to our junior golfers, our high school golfers. Whether they go private or
public school, it doesn't make a difference. They're our youth. They should be able to be
afforded the same privilege at little or no cost at all, and even $8 for student (state of Hawaii
under 18) I don't know. I don't charge them $8 for playing baseball. Idon't charge them $8 to
play soccer. I don't charge them $8 to play tennis. Do I? Just a question, and just the point I
wanted to make.
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MS. HORCAJO: That ... that's very good. It is the Department's responsibility to try and come up
with a balanced budget and we still get a lot of complaints and requests to improve the course.
We're dealing with trying to figure that out ourselves, so your help is appreciated.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you. I didn't mean to get-MS. HORCAJO: That's good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --get on my soapbox but I just felt like that was something I
needed to say. I'll turn it over to my colleagues. Thank you, Ms. Horcajo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, Ms. Johnson, worked hard. Our Legislative Liaison, Mr. Kane,
worked hard this legislative session; whereby, we have the ability to ... and have made
adjustments to the State concession laws. One of the bigger judgments is the length of term
that the County can consider leases to recapture. But also in the concession law, one of the
things that Oahu does (through the City and County ... uh ... Council) they have put out
RFPs, whereby, on County property, they give specific concession rights to certain providers of
goods, particularly, soft drinks, what have you; and in return, they pay the City and County
millions of dollars. Okay? And one of the biggest revenue generators for the city is the soda
concession. So again, whether it be--and again, I bring this up because tennis program, Wells
Park, junior tennis has a concession. Sakamoto Pool, during certain meets (the swim meets)
allowed to have concession. Golf course, we are under contract to not interfere with the
concession there; but that doesn't mean that we cannot fmd different ways of still providing the
concessionaire his ability to run. But let's say we want the Pontanilla Cola only sold at Maui
County .. .(end o!tape, start 6A at 4:48 p.rn.) . .. and Pontanilla Soda pays the County of Maui
$500,000 a year for that benefit ... 'cause only that soda can be sold from a County facility.
So they're paying for exclusive privilege on public property. We can use that $500,000 or
whatever it be to offset this type of cost. Why don't we look at War Memorial Gym? Allow
us to have and go procure so that people can pay to have their corporate sign up and they pay
the County of Maui so much money? We see it at University basketball games. You see the
running. It's Hawaiian Airlines; it's First Hawaiian Bank. They're paying the University so
much money for the privilege of advertising. So what prohibits the County from then looking
at this other means of revenue generation, where the benefit is a recreation program upgrade of
facilities and we can take care some of our more youth needs. Because I don't have a problem
subsidizing from general fund youth programs then having MCCC ask me for hundreds of
thousands of dollars after the problem's already in the correctional center. So I would ask that
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you look at these ways of non-County financing but still provide you revenue options to take
care your growing needs and improvements. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I was just gonna say. That is something that I think, not only
just in the golf fund that we're talking about, but as Council Chair Hokama said, throughout
the County--even with construction of major capital improvement projects--I mean whether it's
a gymnasium, or a track, or some of ... some of these. If you look at Dorvin Leis field, that I
think is one of the first local examples of basically what's tantamount to a franchise, you know.
Now granted, what he did was he donated and constructed the field and everything for us. But
if that's one of the things that we can do, I am completely in support of that. I don't know. Are
you looking at that option--Ms. Horcajo--you know, just to at least explore the possibility?
MS. HORCAJO: Sounds like the time has come. . .. (chuckled) . .. On a, you know, on a personal
professional level, I've been looking at it. I don't think that the previous Administrations and
Councils were in favor. I know our lifeguards and ... um ... have been wanting sponsorships
and pools.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. HORCAJO: There's been a number of offers and requests; but there hasn't been the atmosphere
to accept them until this time. So I'm excited about an opportunity here that we can look at in
the long term. I'm not sure it can be initiated in this, you know, too quickly ... because there's
a lot of information we need to lay our pathway; but I think it's an excellent option for us.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know one of the things we had spoken about before in my
committee was tee sponsorship. You know, that in other words, if there was small type of--I
don't know--advertising or something that, where you're at a particular tee and there was some
kind of recognition on the part of that business or whatever. I really think that whatever we can
do, I am certainly supportive of it. I don't know if! would want some names, you know, have
different, you know. Like the ... (sigh) ... Playboy gymnasium. . .. (chuckled) . .. I don't
know that that would work but, you know what I'm saying.... (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) . ..
MS. HORCAJO: We have some groundwork to lay. . .. (chuckled) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I think that it's important. ... (chuckled) ... They're
laughing. That's okay. But anyway, I know we have ... we did have some problems, I think,
with the Hooters' Hula Bowl. ... (chuckled) . .. That's what reminded me of that whole
thing. So anyway, within certain parameters and decorum. So I'm happy to, you know, work
with you or do whatever I can because I know Ms. Anderson--while she's not here right now--I
think she has the gymnasium and all of the, you know, regional improvements that they have
for a regional park over in South Maui, I think we need to take a serious look at that. But
thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you know, during ... like the Maui Invitational Tournament, I
believe, by the scores. Didn't they have a rotating-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They bring ... (inaudible) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --corporate sponsor kind of thing? Is all that revenue goes to the
tournament sponsor? Or does the County have some net proceeds from that type of sales for
advertisement?
MS. HORCAJO: We currently have a contract with the Chaminade Maui Invitational and I believe
that that revenue goes in order for them to put on the event. We do not obtain a portion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, all I can say is we will be negotiating a lot better in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mister ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But I would ask, Director and Deputy Director. Nothing stops the
Department from already initiating an RFP to go get proposals to start the ~onsideration, and
there's basically no money involved. You just need to get someone to help write up a proposal;
put it out there; and let's see what kind of response we get. Because I think the Chairman
would be happy to get a budget amendment saying that "we have for your consideration, a
concession contract that will bring into Parks so much hundreds of thousands or millions of
dollars that we can then use to, you know, move the Parks program forward; put some other
general funds to other areas of need in this County". So that would be my real strong
suggestion to the two of you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My final take on this. You know, I agree with Councilmember
Hokama and Councilmember Johnson. However, I'd like to also make a note in everyone's
mind that there is only one gym in the entire County ofMaui that's air-conditioned, and I know
people say "oh, you know, they did it because of the Maui Classic". But I've been there many
times when my grandson and my granddaughter were playing basketball and other major
events that went on in there and that we (the local people) get the benefit because we use it
probably 320 days out of the year, give or take a few days. You know, they have it for a certain
amount of time. We have many improvements that we contributed to along with the event
sponsor, and today we have better facilities for it.
I'll give you another classic example. When we had the Maui Stingrays, the War Memorial
(now Iron Maehara Stadium) was in much better shape than it is today because revenues was
derived. We had Korean and Japanese teams that came in and put in money to better that
facility for our people to use 300-plus days out of the year or 250-plus days a year.
So though I do agree that sometimes, Councihnan Hokama, that we have been caught on the
short end of the stick. When it comes to the Mercedes, the Maui Classic, and all these other
events that come into this town, beyond the economic benefit, we have a lot of other nonprofit
groups--like the Boy Scouts, the Mental Health Association, I mean just go on and on and on,
and I don't want to spend all day--that benefit, which means our people benefit. The ones in
most need benefit. So let us not forget that. That's gotta be a good balance in that area.
Although I agree with Councihnan Hokama that we should look for these sponsorships, I agree
with Councilmember Johnson. Let's not get carried away and let's not put a sponsorship that
later on we'll all regret. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. It's a nice conversation. We went from golf to
gyms to Maui Classic.
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We went all over.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Really different.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I went Mercedes again. So ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members. Earlier, I created a proposal in the golf rates and the golf rates for
the Maui resident would have been the same. The Administration had budgeted $10 and my
proposal was $8, which is the current rate for the retirees. The Administration raised the fees
from 3-$5. Well we did some fast calculation in regards to ... if we were to go back to the old
rates of 8 and 3, we need to come out with at least $100,000 to <:over the Maui resident golfers,
which I think is pretty fair. When you look at the other activities that we have, you know, the
... you play softball for free on the baseball field. You play for ft-ee on the tennis court. You
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swim for free in the swimming pools. And my take to this is trying to support the Maui
resident here in Maui County. I don't know how the new rates on the non-res Hawaii resident
and the non-res out-of-state would affect the bottom line because we're testing new .grounds.
You know, we're almost competing with the private courses, especially Pukalani, which I think
the rate being proposed would be slightly lower than the Pukalani rate. So it's a difficult
decision to make, you know, I don't know how to calculate the non-res Hawaii resident and
non-res out-of-state at this time. So the Chair, at this time, would like to revisit this because I
want to make sure that the monies that we transfer to the golf fund, you know, doesn't really
hurt the general fund. But looking at it now, if we took care our Maui resident, then we need to
shift from the general fund at least $100,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That includes debt service, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It doesn't. No, it doesn't include debt service.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think we need to take that into consideration, Mr. Chairman, also, the
debt service that we've asked the golf fund to pay for through the improvements we've
approved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So Members, with that, we're gonna revisit this golf rates
tomorrow to make sure that whatever number we go forward that we don't have, you know, we
don't hurt the golf course in regards to trying to provide funding to do the operations at the
Waiehu Golf Course. But at least, you know, we need to take a look as far as taking care of the
Maui resident. Maybe drop the 10 to 9 somehow and then see how it does come out. So with
that, Members, do you have any comments? Staff?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla. Tonight is the real property tax public hearing. Are we going to
reconvene after that? Or I guess . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Because we worked so late last night, I don't know if the Members can
stand another late night. And we don't know how many testifiers gonna be coming out tonight
and if we had testifiers like last week Friday's meeting, we would be here probably close to
12 o'clock tonight, if we did have that many testifiers. But the, you know, all of the testifiers
that have come, especially today, we took almost the whole morning just to go through 13
people, of course, a lot of dialogue. But the Chair would like to give, not only the Staff, but the
Members, some time to rest and come back fresh tomorrow morning. Members, I do expect,
because Member Hokama and Member Mateo, you know, I've already told them to reschedule
their Saturday to stay on Maui, I'm hoping we can complete by tomorrow some time. So with
that, any more comments, Mr. Taguchi?
MR. TAGUCHI: No.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So with that, the Chair would like to adjourn this meeting. . .. (gavel) ...

ADJOURN: 5:04 p.m.
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